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Chairman’s Statement

ITRBESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Sinoref Holdings Limited (“Sinoref” or the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Chinese Ministry of Commerce has said that China as
being the world’s second largest economy and turning into
the largest consumer market within next two-three years, the
Chinese economy is likely to expand 6.5 percent in 2017. The
Chinese government has reported that China’s 6.7 percent
growth in GDP last year outpaced most other economies and
accounted for more than 30 percent of the global growth;
and China will continue to implement a proactive fiscal policy
and a prudent monetary policy to hold the economy within an
appropriate range in 2017. GDP growth in the first three months
of 2017 remained steady at 0.2 percentage point higher than a
year ago, showing a stabilizing trend in China’s economy. The
improvement in the industrial production is a major contributor
to the stable growth in the first quarter 2017; and it got off to a
strong start in the first quarter with GDP growing at 6.9 percent
year-on-year, according to the data released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China.

For 2017, China is facing more headwinds from external
environment including that from the new US president Donald
Trump, who has been threatening tough measures against
Beijing, though the US trade threats seem lessened after the
recent visit to USA by China president Xi Jinping in April 2017.
At the recent opening meeting of the annual session of China’s
top legislature, the National People’s Congress, premier Li
Kegiang delivered his commentaries and advocation as that:
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- against the backdrop of sluggish world economic growth,
backsliding on globalization and growing protectionism,
China is enjoying many good conditions for sustaining
economic development;

- both the quality and efficiency of economic performance
improved markedly in 2016, and an important reason for
stressing the need to maintain steady growth is to ensure
employment and improve people’s lives.

And the National Academy of Economic Strategy has
recommended that the focus of macro-economic policies
should be in supply-side structural reforms to boost potential
output in the long run.

In steel production and being the world’s biggest supplier and
consumer in the industry, China will likely shrink further in 2017
as local demand slows, according to the China lron and Steel
Association (CISA). In fact, steel makers in China have faced
difficulties over the past few years, due to the shrinking demand
and excessive capacity generated from the past decade of rapid
expansion. The pressure of cutting overcapacity remains for the
steel sector, whereas the progress is still slow in some particular
regions. Steel price has risen in the past few months amid
temporarily strained supply as some producers scaled back
output to avoid losses. The Metallurgical Mines Association of
China has forecasted that China’s steel consumption in 2017 is
expected to decline at a slower rate of 1 percent year on year,
as faster growth in the country’s infrastructure sector will offset
slowdown in the property and auto sectors. Meanwhile, our
subsidiary in production of steel flow control product has strived
better to increase its procurement and production efficiency to
meet the market changes and that in the steel industry. We aim
to optimize the revenue of the plant continuously with effectively
controlled production and better client relationship.

Chairman’s Statement

ITRBESE

- EHRREEERNE  2RLR
MEREEHRTE PETHEE
SERROETEY o

- RIF-RF EREERIUE
FE PENEERREBER
TH o T2 P A R 58 38 M 1 AR AR 4
£ HEZEREAERERILE RN
EARERE -

%%'¢Iﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬂﬁWﬁ%ﬁ%
B RBUSE B R B R R U (R R E Y
%ﬁﬁ&$~uﬂﬂﬁamﬁﬁﬁﬁu

RS - FEIEE2REANH-ES RH
FE - REBETEME TGS BHPE
BAFERE  FEMESREN T —
tHEE—FTZEHR - FTEL ARBRE
oM ERETFRERREHRENE
BEB%  PEEMEERNBERFHR
R 15 o 8 B 5470 I R B RS I EE BE B B
7 EBOEAERKAEE - RBE
LA - B R A P AR R AR AR A S
B MEEHEESWETEMDA - 5
BaeBRIUECEREER  —F—+FF
B §i 25 RV TR HDR DS U E IR R
1% - T 7 B L B R 3 B BRI IR R I K
HEHE RTEEEX - [ - RAL
EHKERERNMNBEAREERENR
%ﬁ%&%é@ﬁyuﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
L2E - WAHEEBERIEH A ENKE
BEFPRERHEBLBERA -

Annual Report 2016
—E-REFR



Chairman’s Statement

ITRBESE

In recent years, there have been increasing public concerns
that deceptive tactics are being used by fraudsters who claim
themselves to be financial intermediaries for money lending
to induce intending borrowers to engage them for arranging
loans with money lenders and charge very high fees under
different pretexts in the process. To combat the problem, the
additional licensing conditions imposed on money lenders
seek to facilitate effective enforcement of the statutory ban on
separate fee charging by money lenders and their connected
parties, ensure better protection of privacy of intending
borrowers, enhance transparency and disclosure, and promote
the importance of prudent borrowing. This set of corporate
Guidelines aim to provide guidance for money lender licensees
on the requirements of the additional licensing conditions that
were applicable with effect from 1 December 2016.

Under the applicable Hong Kong Laws and complying with the
provisions of the Hong Kong Money Lenders Ordinance, our
money lending subsidiary provides loans mainly on mortgage
loans and secured financing in the market. Considering the
financial strength and repayment ability of the customers
together with the collaterals of the properties in Hong Kong
provided by the customers and the relatively short-term nature
of the mortgage loans and advances, the risks involved in the
loans and advances to the customers of the money lending
business are relatively low. The subsidiary expects to develop
more business on high net worth customers and expand
customer portfolio through more referrals. As you would
notice from our announcement of 8 March 2016, that we had
granted a secured first mortgage loan of HK$110 million to an
independent third party for a term of twelve months.

Today, purchases through e-commerce are very convenient
and swift. E-commerce transactions can be made anytime that
allow people to buy products at any time of the day or week
that suits them. Our e-commerce and information technology
(IT) subsidiary enterprise has steadily achieved a high growth
in e-commerce sales through its online sales platforms. During
2017, other than more expansion in B2C e-commerce business
growth, the subsidiary enterprise increased its IT-enhanced
solution sales and also provided management sales for clients
with its Multi marketplace management and sales platforms. The
Board was pleased to make an announcement on 22 June 2016
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about the subsidiary’s actual EBITDA, that was achieved more
than the Guaranteed EBITDA of HK$10,000,000 for the financial
year ended 31 March 2016, with reference to the circular dated
15 September 2015 for the acquisition of the entire e-commerce
enterprise by our holding company.

Moving forward, the Group expects steady and greater organic
growths among all the subsidiaries and we will exercise due
caution to face all challenges ahead. With our strategy to
diversify efforts towards the more profitable businesses, we
believe our Group will make use of our strength in different
industry markets in the foreseeable future and reward
shareholders with better results. Besides, we will review on any
potential business investments and opportunities from time to
time, so as to diversify our business developments and revenue
streams.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to our staff for
their dedication in the adverse and challenging environment,
as well as to our shareholders and business partners for their
continuous support and trust over the years.

Xu Yejun
Executive Director
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

MARKET REVIEW

In 2016, the global economy was still in recovery from debt
crises of previous time, and all those political and economic
crises in United States of America and Europe continued to
affect the world economy, leading to a more volatile financial
market worldwide.

The Chinese economy remained on the path of moderation,
and has successfully transformed economic growth, from being
mainly driven by investment and foreign trade to being driven
by domestic demand, as informed by the Commerce Ministry
of China. The National Bureau of Statistics of China reported
the gross domestic product (GDP) for the full year of 2016 was
at a growth rate at about 6.7%, was the weakest growth in 26
years, and lower than the 2015 GDP growth rate of 6.9%.

According to the World Steel Association (worldsteel), the world
crude steel production reached 1,628.5 million tonnes (Mt) for
the year 2016, up by 0.8% as compared to 2015. China made
more than half the world’s steel but a slowdown in its economy
and sagging global demand had left the industry with excess
capacity. The National Bureau of Statistics reported that China’s
crude steel production in 2016 reached 808.4 Mt, up by 1.2%
on 2015 and China’s share of world crude steel production
increased from 49.4% in 2015 to 49.6% in 2016.

Throughout 2016, China’s authorities tackled excess steel
production through consolidation and closed the inefficient and
polluting factories; moreover, the oversupply condition of steel
in market remained unresolved in China. Total steel product
inventory level in China remained high and many unfavourable
factors including price slide and raw material costs of steel
had put huge pressure on and posted harsh challenges to the
production and operation of steel enterprises. As our steel flow
control product business plant was closely related to the steel
industry in China, its business growth was so adversely affected
in 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The recent property market in Hong Kong is rebounding and
seems to show the promising growth in terms of property price
and transaction volume, the anticipated rise of interest rate, the
volatile global economy and the new measure from the Hong
Kong Government to increase the stamp duty on sales and
purchase of properties have led us to be more cautious when
managing our mortgage loan business. We consider the above
periodical prudent measures are necessary during the time
of unstable and uncertain economic environment and these
measure would produce a more healthy and solid position in our
mortgage loan business, which would have an impact on our
net interest income and mortgage loan portfolio.

At present, there are a lot of business opportunities available
to electronic commerce (e-commerce) business, which is
experiencing rapid growth in Asia Pacific region and particularly
in PRC. The hypercompetitive e-commerce industry needs also
to have efficient logistics in support to satisfy customers with
speed and security. Recently e-commerce giant eBay has set
to launch a new guaranteed delivery program for shoppers to
speed up shipping of ordered items on its platform. This new
policy will help shoppers with faster and more precise delivery
dates. Apart from that, the buyer has the option to return the
guaranteed item at no cost if purchase delivery has arrived late.
As our e-commerce subsidiary business trades through eBay
platform, so we find this new program providing us safety and
precise delivery to customers in remote areas, and will enhance
our expansion in e-commerce business growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

The whole Group (Sinoref Group) comprises its main
business source engaged in the manufacture and sale of
advanced steel flow control products, and its other subsidiary
businesses engaged in the manufacture of paper converting
equipments, money lending business and electronic commerce
(E-Commerce) business.

The Group’s steel flow control product manufacturing plant is
still the Group’s main source of business, principally engaged
in the manufacture and sale of advanced steel flow control
products including subentry nozzle, stopper, tundish nozzle and
ladle shroud. In 2016, steel manufacturers in China continued
struggling hard to survive with low profitability in business
and reduced outputs under the huge pressure and challenges
amidst the deteriorating global market and the fluctuating iron
ore prices. Likewise, our steel flow product manufacturing plant
competing with others in the market with lower sales margin
had further increased selling and distribution costs to maintain a
steady sales volume. The business and financial performances
of the subsidiary strived hard to maintain its leading positions in
the market for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During 2016,
experienced a rebound both in property price and transaction

the property market in Hong Kong has

volume, and turned active and energetic again. However,
having considered the unstable global economy, anticipated
rising interest rate in the United States of America, and keen
and competitive mortgage loan market in Hong Kong, we
believe that the property market nowadays in Hong Kong is
highly unpredictable and challenging; and that a prudent and
cautious approach for conducting our mortgage loan business
is necessary and essential.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Time Credit Limited (TCL), the subsidiary of the Group engaged
in money lending business in Hong Kong under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
had developed sound and effective business growth. This
subsidiary mainly generated good revenues on first mortgage
property loans to customers for their long and short term
financial needs. The well-established and recognized brand
name of “TCL” maintained the loan portfolio that contributed to
a steady growth of our customer base and market share during
the year 2016.

On 8 March 2016, the subsidiary (TCL) as the lender entered
into the loan agreement with the borrower (an independent third
party) pursuant to which the lender had agreed to grant a loan
of HK$110 million to the borrower for a term of 12 months. And
the loan agreement constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

In recent years, the e-commerce industry in Asia Pacific has
been hypercompetitive, retailers are moving beyond competing
on price to competing on logistics, getting packages to more
people with greater speed and security. And retailers with a
stake in the future of e-commerce cannot settle for low prices
alone, but must continue advancing their own capabilities.

The IT business subsidiary of the Group that we named as
“Soaring or VTZero”, has principally engaged in the e-commerce
industry specializing on B2C retailing through the eBay and
Amazon platforms and internet wholesale businesses with
a focus on overseas consumers, logistics management and
sourcing. Our e-commerce business has kept up with the
market innovation and trends on our product sales in overseas
markets, with our logistics in easy pick up locations and efficient
delivery. During the year 2016, the enterprise had continued
growing their business on existing platform with remarkable
results in revenue. Besides, it also generated good revenue in
its IT project solution for different type of corporate customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFNWED

Consolidation in Customer Base

Building on its strong reputation in the industry and leading
technologies in the design and manufacturing of advanced
steel flow control products, the major business of the Group
has further consolidated its customer base in the PRC market.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has well-
secured business with strategic customers. Meanwhile, the
Group continued to be the key supplier of the top 10 steel
manufacturers in the PRC, including Baosteel Group, Shougang
Group, Hebei Group and Wuhan Steel. Going forward, the
Group will continue to explore business opportunities with
domestic steel manufacturers to drive further business growth.

Expanded Overseas Market

During the year under review, the global economy has a
moderate recovery and the management understands the
importance of diversifying its customer base and has devoted
substantial efforts to further expand the overseas market. The
steel flow control product subsidiary of the Group has built up
the reputation of the brand “Sinoref” among the steel industry
over the years and has successfully gained a good reputation
of many of the world’s most renowned steel manufacturers,
including: the world’s largest steel and mining company,
ArcelorMittal; and the world’s largest manufacturer, processor
and distributor of special long steel products, Carboref GmbH.
During the period under review, the Group recorded an
overseas revenue from approximately RMB31 million in 2015 to
approximately RMB27.4 million in 2016. The Group will continue
to enhance its global brand awareness of Sinoref with the view
to strive for a leading position in the industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Enhanced Research and Development

For the year ended 31 December 2016, one of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries has attained four new registered invention
patents. This bring the Group’s total to 33 registered patents
as at the end of the year. Its strong research and development
capability is a core competitive edge of Sinoref that has helped
the subsidiary become China’s second largest advanced steel
flow control product manufacturer in China.

Apart from further developing its steel flow control products
business, the Group has also been seeking potential
opportunities in steel-related as well as non-steel related
businesses. During the period under review, the Group
significantly boosted its investment in research and
development to further diversify its business. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, Sinoref’s research and development
team has 39 professionals, and the expenses on research and
development amounted to approximately RMB26.6 million,
representing approximately 7.4% of the Group’s total revenue.

As a result, the Group has adopted a number of leading self-
developed technologies which enable the Group to enjoy
a preferential tax rate as a Chinese High-tech Enterprise,
supporting future earnings to record new heights.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue
was approximately RMB357.8 million (2015: RMB288.9 million).
The increase in revenue was mainly due to (i) the Group’s
e-commerce business expansion in  overseas market; and (ii)
the significant drop in its average selling price to boost its sales.
Total sales volume of advanced steel flow control products
decreased by approximately 34% to approximately 9,920 tonnes
from 14,939 tonnes for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprised costs of raw
materials, labour, depreciation and other direct costs of
sales. During the year, the Group’s cost of sales increased
by approximately 8% from RMB315.5 million in 2015 to
approximately RMB340.7 million in 2016. The significant
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the sale
volume during the year.

Gross Profit/(Loss)

The Group experienced a gross profit of approximately
RMB17.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a gross
loss of approximately RMB26.5 million. The gross profit was
mainly resulted from the effective cost control in money lending
and e-commerce business, however, due to the sluggish market
demand, gross loss still occur in steel industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment Loss

As the repayment ability of Chinese steel enterprises
deteriorates, an impairment loss for trade receivables amounted
to approximately RMB2.0 million has been recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, due to
unsatisfactory performance of certain business segments,
the Group recognised impairment loss on various of assets of
approximately RMB143.49 million.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs comprised sales
commissions, sales staff costs and transportation costs.
During the year under review, its selling and distribution costs
decreased to approximately RMB20.3 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 31.3% from approximately
RMB29.6 million for the previous year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in sales commission and
transportation costs.

Administrative Expenses and Other Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses and other expenses
increased by approximately 43.6% from approximately RMB67.2
million for year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB96.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
Group has devoted resources to research and development,
amounting to approximately RMB26.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 for creating more new products to meet
with its customers’ needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs were approximately RMB5.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB2.4 million).
The interest rate for bank loan was at a fixed interest rate of
4.92% per annum (2015: 6.4% per annum).

Taxation

The PRC steel flow product manufacturing subsidiary of the
Company has successfully obtained the Chinese High-tech
Enterprise Certification ("8 = #74% fiT 252 3). Consequently,
this PRC subsidiary is entitled to the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax (“EIT”) rate of 15% until 31 December 2017. The EIT rate for
another PRC subsidiary of the Company engaged in production
of paper machineries is 25%.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the challenging conditions, the Group’s loss for
the year was approximately RMB137.9 million, compared to
approximately RMB271.3 million for the previous year. The
loss was mainly due to a combination of factors, which include
(i) the significant drop of its average product price; and (i)
early redemption of promissory note. The Group’s loss per
share decreased from RMB14.14 cents for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB4.86 cents in 2016.

Final Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for year ended 31 December 2016 (2015 Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s net cash
used in operating activities was approximately RMB168.8 million
(2015: net cash used in operating activities RMB121.1 million)
and the Group’s bank balances and cash was approximately
RMB40.1 million (2015: RMB83.7 million).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2016 was
approximately RMB563.9 million (2015: RMB549.5 million). The
Group has an outstanding bank and other loan and promissory
notes of approximately RMB84.5 million and RMB195.7 million,
respectively as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB20.4 million
and RMB207.7 million).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

During the year ended 31 December 2016, except for
investments in its subsidiaries, the Company did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged certain of its
buildings and leasehold land with aggregate net carrying value
of approximately RMB0.80 million (2015: RMB1.69 million) as
collaterals for the bank loan granted to the Group. Gearing ratio
is calculated based on total debt at the end of the year divided
by total assets at the end of the year multiplied by 100%. As at
31 December 2016, the gearing ratio of the Group was 23.0%
(2015: 26%).

BEEEFWED

EXRER  RBESRUBER

REBE-ZZ—X"F+=-_A=+—HLHF
B AEELCETHMARSFELNR
ARM1186,8808 T (ZE— 1 F : &4
EBFTAR S FHEAARKIE21108
L) AEBMRITEHREBESHOBAR
k401087 (ZZE—HF : ARMS,370
Bx)-

REBRZZE—R"F+ZA=+—HMNE
HBEHAARESES308 T (ZF—
AF: ARKS(E4,950870) c RZE—
ANE+TZA=+—8 KAEEHKEER
TREMERREALZRES N AARKE
8,4508 T M A R #1{89,5708 7t (=&
—RE: ARM2 0408 T K ARB2(E
77087T) -

BEARBREENBARARKEDT

WEE-E—AET-AS+—ALF

B BRREAMBLAN  AARBMER
EREMARFETMEARERE
BEEEM

RZE—ARF+-A=+—8 "  x£EE
e THREFELENRARESE T
—ZE—HF AR¥169ETT) MIEFK
HE TR - DERTEEERRITE
HeBEHRG BEEBELERDRFREE
BERUNFERBEETRIAI00%TE - B =
T—REFTZA=+—R AEEEESB
B EAE23.0% (ZE—FE : 26%) °

Annual Report 2016 17
—E-REFR



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had not provided any form
of guarantee for any company outside the Group. The Group
is not involved in any current material legal proceedings, nor
is the Group aware of any pending or potential material legal
proceedings involving the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 438 staff members
employed in mainland China and Hong Kong (2015: 455). Total
staff costs for the year were approximately RMB39.2 million
(2015: RMB42.9 million). During the year, the Group continued
to reinforce the training to its staff by providing training and
study opportunities for management staff and professional
technicians. In addition, the Group has provided a timely update
to all staff about the latest government policies of the industry
to continuously enhance the professional standard and quality
of the staff.

Meanwhile, the Group has provided competitive remuneration
for staff which encourages them to commit themselves and
serve customers wholeheartedly. The Group operates share
option scheme for the purpose to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible directors and employees of the Group
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
Group granted 80 million share options to its eligible employees
during the financial year as announced on 13 January 2016.
The remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company (excluding Directors and chief executive) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is within the range of HK$0 to
HK$1,000,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), GDP growth
rate in the Asia Pacific region are expected to hold steady in
2017, despite the geopolitical tensions, disruptive asset price
shifts, stagnation and low inflation in advanced economies. The
region will continue outperforming the rest of the world over the
medium term; while the Chinese economy is shifting to a more
sustainable pace, growth is projected to pick up elsewhere in
the region. Recently the IMF has upgraded its growth forecast
for the Chinese economy for the year 2017 to 6.5 percent, and
2017 is considered to be a more challenging year for our Group
as compared to the situation in 2016.

World crude steel production for the 67 countries reporting to
the worldsteel was 136.5 Mt in January 2017, a 7.0% increase
compared to January 2016; and 126.6 Mt in February 2017,
a 4.1% increase compared to February 2016. Overcapacity of
steel is a worldwide industry problem and efforts by Chinese
government and enterprises to restructure the steel industry
and reduce excess capacity in China have made headways.
The Commerce Ministry of China has commented that the steel
mills in China are battling losses and overcapacity, and Chinese
steelmakers are not engaged in dumping of surplus goods into
the European Union (EU). China is both the world’s largest steel
producer and consumer. The BMI Research forecast has said
that a domestic monthly demand in China will narrow the global
steel market surplus to 3.2 Mt in 2017 from 10.9 Mt in 2016.
And a recent report by BMI Research has also commented
that China will produce 825 Mt of crude steel in 2017, a 0.5 %
increase from 2016; and will consume 87% of this production.

Our subsidiary engaged in steel flow control product
manufacturing will closely monitor the industrywide policies
and their impacts in market. It will continue applying its leading
technologies to meet those evolving production requirements of
the steel manufacturers.

BEEEFWED

R

RIFEEREEESEABIMF) - BE &K
ARBRRER  BEBKRHBETEHESHK
BEEE s EEE R HIRERR - 5K

BER—_E-tFHBERNLEERERERER
HBERRE - BARERPHASEE

REPEREM MR ER - MPBELHEEES
NEAHEUENSRER  RFRAEM
BRI RITFERG R - RABEBRER
EcHEB AL _T— ti‘*‘l%@i‘ﬁ
TERZE6.5% ME T —REMLE - =
— LT FREREARNEE KRG E AE M
) —%F o

AT —+F—F - e7EMAtFMERE
E#&E’J.%E’J%W#ﬂfﬂ%z?%% 588
Mg B —F— XF— )%Htti'm?o%’
RZT—tF-AA1266E 80 - A=
T—RNFEZ AR IN4.1% o ) i3 = 88
BRAZIRMEITERE - REBAT R
HAMBERRSELBIRNE HERE

R o PRI L - B AT
BB R EERL BT - B AP B R R A BR BR
EUEEARER - FEERAZ2KEAK
HY 8 855 A4 2 Y B2 B B - BMI Research
EAEL  FEEAARTESEHME
mSBFE = *ﬁ$m109§§ﬂ¢ﬁuﬁl
EFE_ZT -+t 5328 &M - KIABM
Research® R & I - CPH ﬁ—ti
15 EES25H & WA M I —NF
LLI2AN0.56% » WA IEFEZEEMBT% °

/\—7

B EREMKERERONBARE
BYERITABRRESTSNTE - I
4 e A EL B R A FE (S SR R T R
WAEERRK o

Annual Report 2016
—E-REFR



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWES W

Money lending business

According to the Hong Kong 2016/2017 budget, the forecasted
GDP growth rate for 2016 is one to two percent, which is lower
than the growth rate of 2015. To remain competitive in the
market, TCL our money lending subsidiary has engaged more
efforts in advertising and referral business, so as to promote our
money lending products and services in an effective manner. In
the view to expand the customer bases and existing portfolio,
its loan policy will continue to adopt prudent and flexible
business strategies and adjust to market and environmental
changes accordingly.

The tightening measures in mortgage rates and a supervisory
role in banks’ credit assessments that the HKMA implemented
have provided a significant part of growth for the non-bank
moneylenders, whom are less regulated and can benefit
from the flexible loan-to-value rates and interest rates. The
seamless and efficient approval process of these non-bank
moneylenders have attracted a growing number of homebuyers
and individual loan borrowers. We notice the latest market
trends and understand our competitive threats, plan cautiously
and prudentially on our corporate strategy to engage our
money lending business in a safe and profitable manner in
Hong Kong. To minimize the potential credit and default risks
in our mortgage loans and interest receivables, we continued
to tighten our credit policy when granting mortgage loans to
our customers and to re-balance and adjust our mortgage loan
portfolio by providing more first-mortgage loan products to our
high net worth customers with sound credit history and quality.

Looking forward, the subsidiary will continue to seize
business opportunities on the increasing demand for such
mortgage loans, promote its brand name and expand its loan
portfolio and customer base by its own channels and through
cooperation with strategic partners. It will continue focusing on
first-mortgage property loans business and are confident about
the future performance of its property mortgage loan portfolio,
interest income and profit; and we believe that it will generate
promising returns to our shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E-commerce business

Year-by-year, the advancement in the e-commerce technology
and the rising competition among online stores have raised the
expectations that people have around e-commerce platforms.
However, there is no single ‘one-size-fits-all’ e-commerce
platform solution that will work for every business.

Our IT subsidiary engaged principally in the e-commerce
business, specializing on B2C retailing through the platforms
including Amazon and eBay with focus on overseas consumers
in existing logistics network, will be developing new e-commerce
products. These products will provide a marketplace, shopping
cart channel, and inventory management that help sellers
manage product listings across different sites and manage
all inventory moves across different channels and build own
warehouses in Middle America, East of United States and UK
etc.

In future, this subsidiary will further extend its e-commerce
business with sales channels through new platforms like
Walmart and Cdiscount and develop more business in the
non-English speaking markets, such as Western European
countries, Japan and India. Besides, it will continue serving
different corporate customers for their IT solution projects.

Bonus Warrant Issue

On 8 December 2015, Sinoref Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
had issued a circular relating to the Bonus Warrant Issue. In
early January 2016, the Company obtained from the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange approval for the listing of
and permission to deal in the Warrants and the Warrant Shares
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the Warrants.
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BEEENWED

A total of 513,845,600 Warrants were issued by the Company
to the Shareholders pursuant to the Bonus Warrant Issue,
represented by the Warrant certificates, conferring the rights in
their registered form to the holders thereof to subscribe in cash
for 513,845,600 Warrant Shares at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.30 per Warrant Share during the period from 13 January
2016 to 12 July 2017. The stock code of the Warrants is 1562
and the Warrants are traded in board lots of 4,000 units each.
Dealings in the Warrants on the Stock Exchange commenced
on 14 January 2016.

Facing the changing market situations, the Group will continue
to implement different prudent and stable operation strategies,
based on the solid foundation laid down over the past years.
In fact, our efforts and business improvements in recent years
been recognized and have attracted various strategic investors
for possible investments on our Group that we have made
our announcement in May 2016. In the long run, the Group
will continue making strategic choices and create commercial
synergies among subsidiary businesses to develop their existing
and potential growth areas and evaluate suitable investments
that help generate more and stable income streams.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company had complied with all the code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report, contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December 2016,
except for Code Provision A.6.7 in respect of the attendance of
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors in the general meetings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

According to Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
Directors and other non-executive Directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. Due to other business engagements,
two independent non-executive Directors and one of the non-
executive Directors could not attend the 2015 annual general
meeting held on 10 June 2016; and two independent non-
executive Directors could not attend the extraordinary general
meeting held on 25 October 2016. However, both at the 2015
annual general meeting and the 2016 extraordinary general
meeting, executive Directors and other non-executive Directors
were present to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Code of
Conduct”) regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Code of Conduct during the year ended 31 December 2016.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

SCOPE OF WORK OF MESSRS. ELITE
PARTNERS CPA LIMITED

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the related notes thereto for
the year ended 31 December 2016 as set out in the preliminary
announcement have been agreed by the Group’s auditor,
Messrs. Elite Partners CPA Limited, to the amounts set out in
the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year. The work performed by Messrs. Elite Partners CPA Limited
in this respect did not constitute an assurance engagement in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong Kong
Standards on Review Engagements or Hong Kong Standards
on Assurance Engagements issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and consequently no assurance
has been expressed by Messrs. Elite Partners CPA Limited on
the preliminary announcement.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and endeavours in following the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report, contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (“Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Board considers
such commitment is essential for the growth of the Group and
for maximising the interest of the shareholders (“Shareholders”)
of the Company. The Company regularly reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the latest development in
corporate governance can be followed and observed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year under review, the Company had
complied with all the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report, contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
during the year ended 31 December 2016, except for Code
Provision A.6.7 in respect of the attendance of independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors in the
general meetings.

According to Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
Directors and other non-executive Directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Due to other business engagement,
the independent non-executive Directors and one of the non-
executive Directors could not attend the 2015 annual general
meeting held on 10 June 2016. However, at the 2015 annual
general meeting, executive Directors and other non-executive
Directors were present to enable the Board to develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders of the
Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted on 7 June 2010 its securities dealing
code (“Code”) regarding the dealings of securities of the
Company by the Directors and senior management of the
Group, on terms no less exacting than the required standard
under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company, having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all the Directors and
senior management of the Group have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Code and Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding securities
transactions by Directors and senior management of the Group
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s overall strategic
policies. The management is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group.

The Board is currently composed of five executive Directors
namely Mr. Zhu Min, Mr. Gao Xiang, Mr. Lu Yongchao, Mr.
Xu Yejun and Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald; two non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Chi Wa and Ms. Yip Sum Yu; and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cao Ke,
Mr. Tong Yiu On and Mr. Li Yik Sang. The chief executive officer
of the Company is Mr. Gao Xiang. The biographical details of
the Directors and the chief executive officer are set out under
“Directors and senior management” on pages 48 to 56 of this
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Wu
Ye (appointed as an executive Director on 20 January 2016 )
and Mr. Cao Ke (appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 10 June 2015) retired at the 2015 annual general
meeting of the Company and eligible to offer themselves for re-
election. Mr. Zhu Min, Mr. Gao Xiang and Mr. Lu Yongchao (all
were appointed as an executive Directors on 16 February 2017)
shall retire at the 2016 general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of
one year, renewable automatically every year and eligible for
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Board meets regularly to review and determine the
corporate strategies and overall strategic policies. Each of the
members of the Board has full access to relevant information
at the meetings. During the financial year ended 31 December
2016, the Board has convened four regular meetings at which,
among other things, the following activities were conducted at
such regular meetings:

(1) approved the annual results and annual report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 and matters to be
considered at the annual general meeting of the Company;

(2) approved the interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2016;
(3) reviewed and approved corporate strategies of the Group

for the financial year ending 31 December 2017; and

(4) reviewed the performance and financial position of the
Group.
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The Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies and performing corporate
governance duties set out under the CG Code. Its corporate
governance duties include, among others, (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal or regulatory
requirements; (iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and (v) to review the Company’s disclosure in its
corporate governance report.

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter
was required.

Details of the Directors’ attendance records at the board
meetings and general meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2016 are as follows:

Board General
Directors Meetings Meeting
Meetings attended/held
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Yejun 14/24 —/2
Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald 24/24 2/2
Mr. Wu Ye' 3/9 -/1
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chow Chi Wa 24/24 2/2
Ms. Yip Sum Yu 20/24 1/2
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tong Yiu On 24/24 1/2
Mr. Li Yik Sang 24/24 1/2
Mr. Cao Ke 22/24 —/2

L Appointed on 20 January 2016 and resigned on 10 June 2016
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Whilst the Board as a whole is to determine the corporate
strategies and overall strategy policies, the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company, as delegated by
the Board, are responsible for implementing the determined
strategies and policies and the day-to-day management of the
Group’s business.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors and
senior management” of this annual report, there is no other
relationship (whether financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) among the members of the Board.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company shall be responsible for arranging
suitable training for all Directors at the Company’s expense.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors
participated in the following trainings:
Directors Type of training

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yejun B
Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald A B
Mr. Wu Ye! B
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chow Chi Wa A B
Ms. Yip Sum Yu A B

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tong Yiu On A B
Mr. Li Yik Sang A B
Mr. Cao Ke B

U Appointed on 20 January 2016 and resigned on 10 June 2016

A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: reading newspapers, journals, Company newsletters and
updates relating to the economy, general business, steel
industry or Directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year under review, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company considered diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) is currently consisted of four members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Yejun (chairman) and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cao Ke,
Mr. Tong Yiu On and Mr. Li Yik Sang. It was established by the
Board with effect from 27 March 2012 and its duties are clearly
defined in its terms of reference which have been prepared and
adopted according to the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year
under review and conducted the following activities:

(1) reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;
and

(2) reviewed the retirement of Directors by rotation and the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2015 annual
general meeting of the Company.

Details of attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2016
are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman) 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cao Ke 2/2
Mr. Tong Yiu On 2/2
Mr. Li Yik Sang 2/2

EEERRE

REZRE

ARrliE2ZB8g ([RRZ8<]) BA
MOBEKREMENK  BRE-—2RTES
ABREERLE (EF) R=2BILIFNT
BEx AERELE FRREENFEAE
Kk RHZEGHEFTEN _T——F
ZA-tERAKY  EBBECHEERRER
ATRIRE R RA  BIERE T ERES

[

A m

REZEENOBEFEARITTMASE
WERIELA TSR :

(1) BLZEFEHRE ABRZT:
K

i3

2 BHRARA_ZE-—AFRRBEF
RELBWRREEEREHEMER
TE% -

REBE_Z—A"F+A=+—HILHK
FE RHAZBEEBERBZHFEABH
ZIa

HE =
BiITESE
BEBLRLE (FE) 2/2
BIUFPRTES
B LA 2/2
BRIt E 2/2
IS A 2/2

Annual Report 2016
—E-REFR



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) currently comprises four members, including
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cao
Ke (chairman), Mr. Tong Yiu On and Mr. Li Yik Sang, and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Yejun. The Remuneration
Committee was established by the Board on 7 June 2010 and
its duties are clearly defined in its written terms of reference
which have been prepared and adopted according to the Code
Provisions.

The Remuneration Committee meets annually to review the
remuneration policies and packages for Directors and senior
management of the Company and to make recommendations
to the Board on such remuneration policies and packages. No
Director takes part in any discussions and decisions about his
own remuneration.

Details of attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2016
are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Xu Yejun 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cao Ke (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Tong Yiu On 2/2
Mr. Li Yik Sang 2/2
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee had convened two meetings with
full attendance by its members and conducted the following
activities:

(1) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company; and

(2) reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all the
executive Directors by reference to their performance.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Tong Yiu On (chairman), Mr. Cao Ke and Mr. Li Yik
Sang. The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 7
June 2010 and its duties are clearly defined in its written terms
of reference which have been prepared and adopted according
to the Code Provisions.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within
the scope of the Group’s audit. It also reviews the annual and
interim reports of the Company prior to their approval by the
Board, the effectiveness of the external and internal audit and of
internal controls and risk evaluation.

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee has
convened two meetings and conducted the following activities:

(1)  reviewed the annual and interim reports of the Company;
(2) reviewed the report of internal audit department, internal
controls system and financial matters of the Group in

pursuance of the written terms of reference;

(8) reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external
auditor of the Company; and

(4) made recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor.
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Details of attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are as
follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tong Yiu On (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Cao Ke 1/2
Mr. Li Yik Sang 2/2

There was no disagreement between the Board’s and the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment of the external
auditor.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the nature
of the audit and non-audit services provided by Elite Partners
CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fees
paid/payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Annual audit 760,000
Interim review 250,000
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2016, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and have prepared the
financial statements on a historical cost basis.

The statement of the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 80 to 88 of this annual
report of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.
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The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system to ensure adequate
control in place to safeguard the Group’s assets and
stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to
address and handle the all significant risks associate with the
business of the Group. The Board would perform annual review
on any significant change of the business environment and
establish procedures to response the risks result from significant
change of business environment. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to mitigate the potential
losses of the business.

The management would identify the risks associate with
the business of the Group by considering both internal and
external factors and events which include political, economic,
technology, environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has
been assessed and prioritized based on their relevant impact
and occurrence opportunity. The relevant risk management
strategy would be applied to each type of risks according to the
assessment results, type of risk management strategy has been
listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of
the risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so
as to avoid the risk;

= Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the
risk or allocate to different location or product or market;
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- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third
party The internal control systems are designed and
implemented to reduce the risks associated with the
business accepted by the Group and minimise the adverse
impact results from the risks. The risk management and
internal control system are design to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit
function to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. There is
no significant deficiency and weakness on the internal control
system has been identified by the external advisory firm for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December
2016, the risk management and internal control system
and procedures of the Group, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions were reasonably effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the Company
are prepared in accordance with Article 64 of the articles of
association of the Company:

(@) one or more Shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings shall have the right,
by written notice, to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.
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PN =N
TEERRS
(b)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or

the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: Unit B, 15/F, Teda Building,
87 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
Email: ir@sinoref.com.hk
Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Registered office of the Company

Address: Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to direct enquiries to the Company

For matters in relation to the Board, the Shareholders can
contact the Company at the following:

Address: Unit B, 15/F, Teda Building, 87 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Email: ir@sinoref.com.hk

Tel: (852) 3549 6353

Fax: (852) 3549 6354

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer
and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, the registered Shareholders
can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company’s principal place of business at Unit B, 15/F, Teda
Building, 87 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the board of directors of the
Company will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda
for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Notice in writing of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an extraordinary general meeting.

(b)  Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

(c) Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution or an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting of
the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Introduction and Scope of ESG Report

This year is the first Environmental, Social and Governance
(“"ESG”) report prepared with accordance to Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on Main Board (“Main Board Listing Rule”).
The report will disclose the performance and progress for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The Group understands the
importance of the ESG report and is committed to making
continuous improvements in corporate social responsibility into
the business in order to better meet the changing needs of an
advancing society.

The first ESG report of the Group it will present mainly policies,
initiatives and performance. The ESG report of the Group has
been presented into two subject areas, Environmental and
Social and each subject area will have various aspects to
disclose the relevant policies and the status of compliance with
relevant laws and regulations as addressed by the ESG Guide.
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The following will show the ESG issues that found material for
the Group and the relation to the ESG Guide:

ESG Guide Relevant ESG issues to the Group

A. Environmental

A.1 Emissions Carbon dioxide emission and waste
management

A.2 Use of resources Energy and water consumption

A.3 Environmental and natural Measures in reducing environmental

resources impact

B. Social

B.1 Employment Labour practices

B.2 Health and safety Workplace health and safety

B.3 Development and training Employee development and training
B.4 Labour standards Child labour and forced labor
B.5 Supply chain management  Supplier management

B.6 Product responsibility Product safety and quality

B.7 Anti-corruption Anti-corruption and money laundering
B.8 Community investment Community involvement

The Group

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sale
of advanced steel flow control products, and also in the
manufacture of paper converting equipment, money lending
business, electronic commerce (e-commerce) and information
technology (IT) solution business.
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A. Environmental

A.1 Emissions

Carbon dioxide and waste management

The Group’s main business source comes from manufacturing
and selling advanced steel flow control products including
subentry nozzle, stopper, tundish nozzle and ladle shroud. The
Group will continue to strive to minimize the environmental
impact of casting molten steel. The Group’s main emissions
comes from manufacturing therefore, it is the Group’s policies
to maintain the manufacture process in an efficient and
effective manner. Ensured waste water is properly connected
to municipal sewage system and all land waste is send to
municipal solid waste management plant during production.
The greenhouse gas emissions are carbon dioxide emissions
from energy consumption. There are also air emissions such
as metal dusts and water emissions from cooling the metal
during production. Water emissions can be minimised through
water filtration. The Group will continue take close observation
for better alternative in material use and methods to lower
emissions to water, air and land.

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
complied with applicable environmental laws and regulations

the Group has

such as Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of
China Prevention {/F Z&E A R H B IR H(REE), Control of
Atmospheric Pollution (2 A R HEFBEIKR)5R78%5) and
Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment Ordinance {3 $E5E7Kk 2
S5IKERIR K] . The Group will continue to make assessment
on the Group’s air and greenhouse gas emissions to take
specific measures to further reduce emissions of air, water and
land waste.
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A.2 Use of resources
Energy and water consumption

The Group aims to better manage its use of resources and
perform regular assessment. As part of the environmental
friendly strategy, the Group implemented polices on the use
of resources such as reduce errors in production to prevent
waste of materials, optimal production schedule to reduce the
waste and reduction of resources used during the production.
The Group is also committed to promote saving and recycling
culture to encourage staff to use less and recycle more. Such
as reduce total paper consumption in offices by keeping
electronic format copy.

A.3 Environmental and natural resources
Measures in reducing environmental impact

To mitigate the impacts on the environment and natural
resources, the management of the Group would evaluate and
implement policies to reduce the impact, such as energy saving
initiative to create sustainable environmental value. The Group
will continue to seek alternative environmental friendly resources
and materials to reduce the emissions of air, water and land
waste.

B. Social
B.1 Employment
Labour practices

A good workplace practice is a key aspect for the employees
to maintain good relationship. The Group adopts practices and
policies of Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China /%
ARKEFBELE)E), Labor Contract Law of People’s Republic
of China (FFEARKEMELBHARL) in compensation and
dismissal; recruitment and promotion; working hours; rest
periods; equal opportunity; diversity; anti-discrimination and
welfare and other benefits.
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Recruitment and promotion is free from discrimination and
received equal opportunities for all despite of age, gender, race,
colour, sexual orientation, disability or marital status.

The Group’s employee handbook distributed to employees
also highlight important information on policies, dismissal,
recruitment, promotion, leave benefits, compensation and
other benefits and welfare. The employee’s contract also
signed in accordance with guidance of the Human Resources
Department/Administration Department governing the labour

compliance.
B.2 Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

To provide a safe and comfortable working environment, the
Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (/& A R £ M B & 8) %) of occupational
safety and health and other applicable regulations. Workplace
is equipped with fire and safety equipment to prevent outbreak
of fire accident and the validity of the fire facilities have been
regularly checked. During the year, the Group has reported zero
work related fatalities and work injuries. The staff handbook also
included sufficient policies on safety and staffs are asked to
follow the safety instruction.

B.3 Development and Training
Employee development and training

Employees are encouraged to continue development and
improve their skill set through training. The Group has various
training programmes, internal and external, to fully develop its
workforce. New employees are also provided with on-board
training to help faster adapt to the operations of the Group.
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B.4 Labour Standards
Child labour and forced labor

There is no tolerance towards recruitment of minors and forced
labour for the Group’s operation. There is compliance towards
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (¥ #
ARZEMBE LB A F)E) and any individuals under legal working
age and individuals without any identification documents are
disqualified from employment.

There is a strict recruitment procedure through Human Resource
Department and upon discovery of any child labour and use of
forced labour, the person will be dismissed immediately and the
Board will discuss and review the discovered event to prevent it
from happening again.

B.5 Supply Chain Management
Supplier management

The Group aims to provide comprehensive solutions that meet
customers’ needs and establish a comprehensive vertical supply
chain management system through resource integration and
supplier screening and management.

The objectives are to deepen the collaborative relationship with
the strategic suppliers and to create competitive advantages
in the value chain, thereby aim to enhance the impact on the
society and environment. The Group also tended to maintain
long term relationship with its suppliers for ensuring stable
supply of materials or goods.
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B.6 Product Responsibility
Product safety and quality

The Group ensure to produce product that is safe and meet
service quality through policies such as if discovered the
product has quality problem, the product can be exchanged.
The Group complies with various PRC regulations to the
operation of the business. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group did not have any product returned due to
safety or health problems or any complaint received from
customers. Customers’ data will also be kept in confidential in
order to protect consumer data and privacy and be destroyed
on a timely basis. Also, the Group has complied towards the
Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China { R A
RANMBEEREEE).

B.7 Anti-Corruption
Anti-corruption and money laundering

The Group has zero tolerance towards any corruption, fraud,
money laundering, bribery and extortion. The Group has
compliance towards relevant laws and regulations such as
Criminal law of the People’s Republic of China (/ #E A R
H A B il /&) and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China{df E AR KX MBE N T EE & F
7&) . For the year ended 31 December 2016, such events
have never happened in the Group. The Group maintains
a code of business integrity and standard. A system with
good moral integrity and anti-corruption mechanism is the
cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy development of the
Group. The Group has policies on anti-money laundering and
counter-terrorist financing any suspicious transactions would
be notified and reported to the relevant governing body by the
responsible officer.

B.8 Community investment
Community involvement

The Group is committed to provide career opportunities to
the locals and promote the development of the community’s
economy as part of the Group’s sustainable development
strategy. Also, the Group will try to seek opportunities to work
with charity partners in the future to get involved in various
community programs to contribute back to society.
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Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Min, aged 68, graduated from Zhejiang University with
a master’s degree in Industrial Management and received a MS
degree in Engineering Economics from Stanford University as
one of the first batch of overseas students sent by the PRC
Government to pursue a doctoral degree in Stanford University.
He co-founded Future Labs Inc. in 1991 which was later
acquired by Quarterdeck Corp.. In 1996, he co-founded WebEx
Communications Inc. which was successfully listed on NASDAQ
in 2000 and then acquired by Cisco Systems Inc. for US$3.2
billion in 2007.

In 2003, Mr. Zhu became the sole investment partner in China
of New Enterprise Associates (NEA), a renowned U.S. based
venture capital fund focusing on early- and middle-stage
companies, assisting NEA to successfully invest in a group of
independent innovation enterprises in China. In 2005, Mr. Zhu
founded Cybernaut Investment Group, one of China’s best
venture capital houses in 2015 selected by Forbes. It is one of
the leading private equity and venture capital fund in China.

In 2007, Mr. Zhu donated US$10 million to set up Zhejiang
University International Innovation Institute (ZIl) with Zhejiang
University in a drive to promote domestic technological and
industrial innovations.

Mr. Zhu has many years of experience in computer, network
communications and services. He is a well-known scientist
in the field in the United States. In 2002, he was named by
Business Week as one of the 25 most influential people in
global e-commerce. In 2008 and 2009, Mr. Zhu was selected by
Forbes as one of China’s best venture capital investors. At the
first China Public Entrepreneurship and Innovation Conference
held in 2016, he was granted the title of China’s Pioneer in
Innovation and Entrepreneurship by virtue of his reputation in
the international investment community.

Mr. Zhu is the founder and chairman of the board of Cybernaut
Investment Group Limited, the Vice president of China Society
for the Promotion of Science and Technology Commercialization,
the founder and dean of the Zhejiang University International
Innovation Institute (ZII).

At the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhu held 389,000,000
shares of the Company.
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Mr. Gao Xiang, aged 48, holds a bachelor’s degree from the
School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua University
in Beijing and double master’s degrees in Mathematics and
Computer from the University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA. He
currently serves as a senior partner of Cybernaut Investment
Group and is mainly in charge of industrial investment operation
and management as well as capital operation.

After graduation Mr. Gao was engaged in advanced research
and development work at Microsoft Corp. (headquarters) in
the United States and was one of the Office98 software main
R & D members. In 1997, he established the China products
e-commerce website “Chinamalls.com” in Seattle and in 1999,
it was acquired by a company listed on NASDAQ.

In 2003, Mr. Gao joined Dangdang.com to serve as its vice
president and to lead the website’s development. He was also
responsible for Dangdang.com’s customer service and logistics
operations. Later in 2007, he was appointed and served as
the chief executive officer of Yaolan.com, and successfully
transformed Yaolan.com into China’s well known children
education online-to-offline platform.

In 2013, Mr. Gao served as the chief executive officer and an
executive director of Gome.com.cn. He was mainly responsible
for designing the structure of its online-to-offline retail platform
system and to remodel and personalize the existing marketing
management system based on big data. He has rich experience
in business management, education and Internet platform
operation. Mr. Gao is currently a director of RZZEZ (LN A
R A 7] (Wuhan Tong Xue Wen Hua Co. Ltd.) which is listed on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations of China.

At the date of this annual report, Mr. Gao is also the chief
executive officer of the Company.
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Mr. Lu Yongchao, aged 37, obtained a diploma in Business
Administration for Real Estate Entrepreneurs in China at Sun
Yat-sen University and a diploma in English at Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies. Mr. Lu was a team member of
Ample Luck International Capital Group Limited, a domestic
well known fund management group. Mr. Lu has extensive
experience in business development, market development,
media management, finance and Information Technology
industry and years of investment, financing and fund
management history. He has rich experience in the enterprise
strategic management, internet strategy, brand management,
investment and financing management. He was the founder of
Enjoymedia Holdings Company Limited, which was listed on
the OTCBB in 2006 and was named one of the hundred most
Chinese Concept corporation listed in United States. Prior to
that Mr. Lu had been the Chief Executive of the online websites
YESITE and ITNOW, as well as the Whirlpool Kit Department
Head in China. Mr. Lu had assisted listing and financing of
different enterprises while working in an investment company
in China, and had served as the director of Taiwan listed
corporation China Mobile Digital Group. He also had served as
a director of a well-known German outdoor brand VAUDE.

Mr. Lu is also the director of Eagle Pioneer Limited, Accurate
Trade International Limited and Great Select Global Limited. Mr.
Lu resigned as an chief executive officer and appointed as an
executive director of the Company with effect from 16 February
2017. At the date of this annual report, Mr. Lu held 6,100,000
shares and 15,000,000 share options of the Company.

Mr. Xu Yejun, aged 52, the co-founder of our Group, is the
chairman and our executive Director. Mr. Xu was appointed as
our executive Director on 4 February 2010. He was our Group’s
chief executive officer from its establishment until 2 January
2015 when he resigned from such position. He is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and management of our
Group. Mr. Xu has extensive experience in the advanced steel
flow control products industry, and has been engaging in such
business for over 25 years. He is also the director of Sinoref
(Hong Kong) Limited.
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Mr. Xu studied in HE & KEFHE (Yixing Dapu Secondary
School*) from 1979 to 1981. Mr. Xu had been trained in &5
NMEHRFERE (Luoyang Institute of Refractories Research®) from
1984 to 1986. He had worked in B S5 i A £ (Yixing
Magnena Refractory Materials Factory*) from 1981 to 1983 and
from 1987 to 1989, in EHEEMEIESBEMEER AR (Yixing
Wellfire Nonmetal Materials Co., Ltd.) from 1990 to 1995 and
in BEEPNEZEAR QA (Yixing Zhongeun Kiln Products Co.,
Ltd.*) from 1996 till the establishment of Sinoref (Yixing) in 2005.
As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Xu was a director, the
chairman and the legal representative of ZE iy B & (H ) = 44 F &
BR 7] (Sinoref International (Yixing) Co., Ltd.*), and a director
of Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited and Sinoref (BVI) Limited. Each
of Y BB (H 8)5 AL Fg & AR A &) (Sinoref International (Yixing)
Co., Ltd.*), Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited and Sinoref (BVI)
Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company as at
the date of this annual report.

For his research item BEHEZERERIEEEE W AM
BE#TE ST & (The research and manufacture of new high
quality refractory accessory materials in glass melting furnace
regenerative chamber series®), Mr. Xu was awarded A Bl T 2
BHE# S8 (China Light Industry Technological Advancement
Award*) by FREE T#€ (China Light Industry Association*)
in 1991, /8™ B 2 ¥ 1y # 2 82 (Science and Technology
Progress Awards of Shanghai) by /& mRIER it S igFEE
E& (Science and Technology Progress Awards Jury, Shanghai
Municipality) in 1995 and F/8MEHEKRTEKEEE (Certificate
for Accomplisher of Technological Advancement in Shanghai*)
by EEMRIERiIZ E & (Science and Technology Commission
of Shanghai Municipality) in 1996. Mr. Xu was also awarded
JE T RIZ R i £ 88 (Science and Technology Progress Awards
of Shanghai) by £/ MR B iT#E PRTEEZEE® (Science
and Technology Progress Awards Jury, Shanghai Municipality)
in 1996 in respect of BERFERAEAEZR FTERIEEER
2 (The research and manufacture of high quality specific
regenerative chambers checkers series accessory products®).
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Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald, aged 60, was appointed as
our executive Director on 10 October 2014. He received his
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from Queensland University of
Technology, Australia in 1994 and a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Southern Queensland,
Australia in 2006. He currently is an associate member of
HKICPA and a fellow member of the CPA Australia. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Sin has served companies in different
industries in Hong Kong, including those listed in Hong Kong
and overseas. He possesses over 20 years of management
experience in areas of accounting, business strategy and
corporate restructuring.

Mr. Sin is also the director of Time Credit Limited. At the
date of this annual report, Mr. Sin held 2,452,000 shares and
15,000,000 share options of the Company.

Mr. Wu Ye, aged 28, was appointed as our executive Director
on 20 January 2016. He received his Bachelor of Engineering
from East China University of Science and Technology in 2009
and Master of Economics from Central University of Finance
and Economics in 2014. He has over 5 years of experience
in financial investment and project management. Currently he
is the general manager of Zhongjin Equity Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of
KIEEZR (EE) AR A A (Guotai Investment Holdings
(Group) Co. Ltd.) (“Guotai”).

Mr. Wu was not re-elected as an executive Director at the 2015
AGM and resigned with effect from 10 June 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Chi Wa, aged 48, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 27 November 2013. Mr. Chow received
a master’s degree in corporate governance from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He has acted as an executive director,
chief executive officer and the company secretary of Sino
Splendid Holdings Limited since March 2013 (a company list
on GEM Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8006)).
Mr. Chow is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
He possesses extensive experience in finance and accounting.

Ms. Yip Sum Yu, aged 27, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 10 November 2014. She is currently a consultant
of an investment company. Ms. Yip has gained valuable
experience in investments and investors relations in connection
with both listed and private investments. She did not hold any
other directorships in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the last three years.

At the date of this annual report, Ms. Yip held 15,000,000 share
options of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tong Yiu On, aged 50, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 10 October 2014. He is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Tong has served as the chief
financial officer of Infinity Chemical Holdings Company Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 640)) and its executive director and company
secretary since December 2011. From September 2000 to
November 2008, he served as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Sinotronics Holdings Limited (currently
known as Kingwell Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1195)) and
he concurrently acted as its executive director from December
2002 to November 2008. Prior to joining such company, he had
nine years of financial management, accounting and auditing
experience from various companies listed in Hong Kong and
overseas and an international accounting firm.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
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Mr. Li Yik Sang, aged 42, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 10 October 2014. He has over 14
years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting. He has
served as the chief financial officer, authorised representative
and company secretary of Meike International Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 953)) from August 2009 to January 2016. Mr. Li
served as an audit assistant and a semi-senior auditor in Grant
Thornton from November 2000 to December 2002. He later
worked as a staff accountant, senior accountant and manager
in Ernst & Young from January 2003 to January 2007. He
acted as the chief financial officer of China Packaging Group
Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 572)) from January 2007 to
July 2009. He also served as an independent non-executive
director of China Agrotech Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1073))
from December 2011 to June 2014. He received his bachelor’s
degree in commerce from the University of Queensland,
Australia in December 1998. He received his master’s degree
in commerce (information systems) from the University of
Queensland, Australia in August 2000. Mr. Li has been a
member of CPA Australia since April 1999 and was granted a
certificate of certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia in
November 2006 and he has been a member of HKICPA since
February 2007.

Mr. Cao Ke, aged 42, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 10 June 2015. He received his bachelor’s
degree in economics from Nankai University in China in 1995
and a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Hawaii in USA in 2001. He possesses over 10
years of experience in financial management and over 5 years of
experience in financial investment and project management. He
served as Chief Financial Officer in Guangdong Esquel Textile
Enterprise Co., Ltd., Jiemi Int’l Trade (shanghai) Co., Ltd. and
Guangdong Qide Education Service Ltd.. Since January 2010,
he served as Chief Investment Officer in Youngy Investment
Holding Group Co., Limited which is a reputable investment
company in the PRC. Since December 2012. He served as
Supervisor in AnHua Agricultural Insurance Company Ltd and
Shenzhen Huaxunark Technology Co., Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Zhizhong, aged 49, is the deputy general manager
and the head of our Production Department. Mr. Wang joined
our Group in 2005. Mr. Wang was qualified as an assistant
engineer by #EHHAZEE (Wuxi Municipal Personnel Bureau®)
in 1995. He obtained L&MEHIKRTKEFZE (Certificate
for Accomplisher of Technological Achievement in Shanghai*)
for each of the project named “/E& & EIA T2 O EHT R
(Development of hollow composite fusion cast blocks*) and “kX
BRERE L HEABRAEMNAME RENME" (Research on
novel refractories for super structure of glass furnace*) from
EBTHRIZRMZEZEE (Science and Technology Commission of
Shanghai Municipality) in 2000.

Mr. Wang worked in the production technology department in
various companies including B BEIESBHE AR AR
(Yixing Wellfire Nonmetal Materials Co., Ltd.) and E @z
E#ABRAF (Yixing Zhongeun Kiln Products Co., Ltd.*), before
joining our Group in 2005. In addition, Mr. Wang, jointly with
Mr. Xu and Dr. Zhang, invented the AJ3EH7R AR EEMEER
FE# (Mono block Stopper with controlled gas flow) which was
registered as a patent (in respect of utility) in the PRC in May
2010.

Mr. Wen Zhuowei, aged 39, joined us in 2007 as head of our
Production Department and worked as head of our Purchasing
Department in 2013. Mr. Wen is mainly responsible for our
procurement and environmental protection matters. Mr. Wen
graduated from JL# & EEEE AZE (Jiangsu Radio and TV
University*). He worked for T#&mwiE s AmABMRAE (Nike
Jiangsu) Sport Products Co., Limited*) as production supervisor
from 2000 to 2005 and worked as shift leader in Z R (B
) R A 7 (Weimi Science and Technology (Yixing) Co., Ltd*)
from 2006 to 2007 prior to joining our Group.

Mr. Dai Donglin, aged 48, joined us in 2007 as executive
regional sales manager. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Arts from Henan University in 1992. He then joined Vesuvius
Advanced Ceramics (Suzhou) Co. Ltd. from 1995 to 2004.
Mr. Dai furthered his studies on Civil and Commercial Law
between 1998 and 2000 in Jilin University. He has many years
of experiences in sales management.

For the purpose of this section, “*” denotes unofficial English translation.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of
advanced steel flow control products used in the continuous
casting steel making process to protect, control and regulate
the flow of molten steel, and manufacture and sale of
paper converting equipment and other relating equipment,
E-commerce, E-commerce solutions and related support
services and selling of information technology products, as well
as, money lending.

The Group’s turnover is mainly derived from business activities
in Mainland China. An analysis of the Group’s income for the
year is set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 39 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 89 and 90 of this report.

The state of the Group’s affairs at 31 December 2016 is set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on page 91
of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company is not aware of any arrangement under which a
shareholder of the Company has waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The result, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, are summarised on page 188 of this report.

Report of the Directors
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of property, plant and equipment of the Group as at
31 December 2016 are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
there was a sufficiency of public float the Company’s securities
as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders as at 31 December 2016 was Nil (31 December
2015: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Percentage

of the total
purchases/sales
accounted for

Purchases
— the largest supplier 11%
— five largest suppliers combined 31%
Sales
— the largest customer less than 10%
— five largest customers combined 22%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest
in the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group noted
above.

At no time during the year under review, none of the Directors,
their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the customers or suppliers disclosed
above.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group has always kept our sustainable development that
aligns with the harmonious relationship to the environment
and committed to pay close attention to conserving natural
resources. The Group strives to minimize our environmental
impact by water-recycling initiatives, sewage treatment
implementation, energy saving and wastage reduction, and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. On
gas emission, advanced equipments have been employed in
various production procedures to recover part of the wastage
particulates generated during production process and minimize
the emission to the fullest extent. The Group dedicates to
improving equipment efficiency and quality management in order
to reduce power consumption. It also requires our factories to
operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and
approval from the relevant PRC regulators.

The Group always insist on the ideology on issues of
environmental protection, being conventional, safe and clean.
To enhance environmental awareness and encourage daily
participation among staff in the continuous improvement of
environmental protection, the Group implements green office
practices, such as implementing paperless practice whenever
possible and engaging staff regularly on low carbon office
measures.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Board recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development of the
Group. The Group is committed to building a close and caring
relationship with its employees and business partners and
improving the quality of services to the customers. Employees
are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated
and its workers are provided with regular training courses on
operation of different types of machinery, as well as work safety.
The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills. It is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate social governance essential for creating a framework
for motivating staff, and contributes to the community in which
we conduct our businesses and creates a sustainable return.
It also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers
through various channels such as telephone, electronic mails
and physical meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance and risk management policies
and procedures, and members of the senior management are
delegated with the continuing obligation to monitor adherence
and compliance with all significant legal and regulatory
requirements. Our Audit Committee is delegated by the Board
to monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and such policies
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operation units from time to time.
Since the Group has subsidiaries in China and Hong Kong, the
establishments and operations shall comply with relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Group’s operation has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong in all material
respects.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Min? (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Xiang®

Mr. Lu Yongchao*

Mr. Xu Yejun

Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald
Mr. Wu Ye'

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chi Wa
Ms. Yip Sum Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tong Yiu On
Mr. Li Yik Sang
Mr. Cao Ke

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Gao Xiang®
Mr. Lu Yongchao®

U Appointed on 20 January 2016, not re-elected and
resigned on 10 June 2016

e Appointed on 16 February 2017

e Appointed on 16 February 2017

& Appointed on 16 February 2017

2 Resigned on 16 February 2017

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Directors’ profiles are set out on pages 48 to 55 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhu Min’s appointment has no fixed term and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company. His remuneration as the executive
director and chairman of the Company will be determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company and the Board with
reference to his duties and responsibilities with the Company
and the prevailing market situation.

Mr. Gao Xiang’s appointment has no fixed term and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company. His remuneration as the executive
director and chief executive officer of the Company will be
determined by the remuneration committee of the Company and
the Board with reference to his duties and responsibilities with
the Company and the prevailing market situation.

Mr. Lu Yongchao’s appointment has no fixed term and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company. His remuneration as the executive
director of the Company will be determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company and the Board with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation.

Mr. Xu Yejun, entered into a service contract with our Company
pursuant to which he agreed to act as executive Directors for
an initial term of three years with effect from 7 June 2010. The
term of service shall be renewed and extended automatically
by one year on the expiry of such initial term and on the expiry
of every successive period of one year thereafter, unless either
party has given at least three months’ written notice of non-
renewal before the expiry of the then existing term.
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Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald is appointed for an initial term of
three years commencing from 10 October 2014 renewable
automatically for a successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, unless terminated by either Mr.
Sin or the Company giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter.

Mr. Wu Ye, our executive Director was appointment with no
fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company. He has
not entered into a service agreement with the Company. His
remuneration will be determined by the Board with reference
to his duties and responsibilities with the Company and the
prevailing market situation.

Mr. Chow Chi Wa, our non-executive Director has been
appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from 27
November 2013 renewable automatically for successive term of
one year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of then current term of appointment, unless terminated by either
party has given at least three months’ notice in writing expiring
at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Ms. Yip Sum Yu was appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from 10 November 2014 renewable automatically
for successive term of one year each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
unless terminated by either Ms. Yip or the Company giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of
the initial term or at any time thereafter.
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Mr. Tong Yiu On was appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from 10 October 2014 renewable automatically for
successive term of one year each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
unless terminated by either Mr. Tong or the Company giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of
the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Mr. Li Yik Sang was appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from 10 October 2014 renewable automatically for
successive term of one year each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
unless terminated by either Mr. Li or the Company giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of
the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Mr. Cao Ke, our independent non-executive Director was
appointed for an initial term of three years, subject to retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association. Mr. Cao
will be entitled to a director’s fee to be determined by the Board
based on his anticipated effort and expertise to be exercised on
the Company’s affairs.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group to protect the Directors and officers of the Group against
any potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the particulars disclosed in note 36 under the
heading “Related party transactions” to the financial statements,
there were no other transaction, arrangement or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business, to which
the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party
nor there were any other transaction, arrangement or contracts
of significance in relation to the Company’s business between
the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director had, whether
directly or indirectly, a material interest.

No contract of significance had been entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to the Directors
of the Company, our chief executive officer of the Company had
an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company, which were required to be recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying
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REOREBRO 2HFRERXR

Shares
Interest in Approximate
Name of Number of underlying Shares percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest securities held of share option  shareholding
(Note 1) (Note 1) (%)
EZ Cidolid
BRER EaNE FiESHE HREHER AL
(Hist1) (Hat1) (%)
Mr. Lu Yongchao Interest in a controlled 6,100,000 Shares (L) 15,000,000 0.66%
corporation
Bk L E RS EE R 6,100,000 A7 (L)
Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald Interest in a controlled 2,452,000 Shares (L) 15,000,000 0.55%
corporation
EEIRE A R EE RS 2,452,000 BRR1A(L)
Ms. Yip Sum Yu Interest in a controlled - 15,000,000 0.47%
corporation
Efmat REEEEER
Note: Mt -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. 1. [LI RRZALTREARRBRDZTE -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to the Directors
of the Company, the following persons, other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which were required to be recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

Interest in

Number of underlying Shares

Name of
Shareholder Nature of interest securities held
(Note 1)
BRME ER REEHE FrisEHHEA
(Fiit1)
Mr. Jiang Qi Hang Interest in a controlled 205,012,000 Shares (L)
corporation (Note 2)
IRMEE RS EE RS 205,012,000z 13 (L)
(Hiiz2)
Ms. Lam Wai Ha Interest in a controlled 207,400,000 Shares (L)
corporation
MEERL R EEES 207,400,0008% iz 7 (L)
Mr. Lee Yim Interest in a controlled 260,000,000 Shares (L)
corporation (Note 4)
FREE Rt EE R 260,000,0008 815 (L)
(Hiita)
Fully Wealthy Inc. Beneficial owner 205,012,000 Shares (L)
(Note 2)
ExBEA 205,012,0008% & 17 (L)
(Hiit2)
Wide Select Investments Limited Beneficial owner 260,000,000 Shares (L)
(Note 3)
ERBAA 260,000,0008& B3 (L)
(H1523)
Notes: Hiat
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. i
2. Fully Wealthy Inc. is the legal and beneficial owner of approximately 28

6.43% of the entire issued share capital of the Company. Fully
Wealthy Inc. is wholly owned by Mr. Jiang Qi Hang.
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3. Wide Select Investments Limited is the legal and beneficial owner
of approximately 8.16% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company. Wide Select Investments Limited is wholly owned by
Mr. Lee Yim.

4. The long position denotes the interests of the vendors (i.e. Mr.
Lee Yim) pursuant to the Acquisition of Soaring International
Holdings Limited on 9 November 2015.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as
at 31 December 2016, had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
of general meetings of the Company or substantial shareholders
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted on 7 June 2010 (the
“Adoption Date”), for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for ten years from the
Adoption Date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
following:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Group
or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest (including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director
of the Group or any Invested Entity);
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(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(ily any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(v) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(v any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and

(vii) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliances or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options). In addition, where
any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their respective
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in a 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, such grant of
share options are subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Board, whose
period may commence from the date of acceptance of the
offer for the grant of share options but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination under the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not
be less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of the
offer of the grant, which must be a trading day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.
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Since the Adoption Date and up to 31 December 2016,
200,000,000 share options has been granted by the Company,
representing 6.28% of the issued share capital of the Company

as at 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARE OPTIONS

Movement of the Share Options

Movements of the share options which were granted under the

Share Option Scheme, during the year under review were listed

below in accordance with Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:

HRMASHEZE T NFEF+ A=+
— A ARQFE & 1200,000,00017 i B
o HEERARER_E—RF+ZA=
+—HBZ BT A6.28% °

EFERMREzED
BRESZD

BiE FTHEBFE17.071E - REEEREE
BERE RN BREEE T ¢

Outstanding Number of share option Outstanding
as at HResE as at
1 January 31 December
Exercise 2016 2016
Date of price (HK$) RIB-RF RIE—RE
Grantee grant fiEm —HA—H  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed +=AZ=+-—H
EBA BHAM (%) AT B BT BES B&N RETE
Executive Director
uiEs
Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald 16 March 2015 0.32 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000
(Note 1)
BB L ZE-REZATAA (1)
Non-Executive Director
FUTES
Ms. Yip Sum Yu 16 March 2015 0.32 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000
(Note 1)
Ermut ZZ-R¥=R+irA (Witt)
Senior Management
BREER
Mr. Lu Yongchao 16 March 2015 0.32 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000
(Note 1)
BXKEEE ZE-REZATAA (1)

Sinoref Holdings Limited
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Outstanding Number of share option Outstanding
as at RERERE as at
1 January 31 December
Exercise 2016 2016
Date of price (HK$) R-B-RE RZB-R%E
Grantee grant f1E® —A—H  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed +=B=+-H
EBA RHAM (%7 RRTHE B BT B B&N RRITHE
Employees
ER
Employees 16 March 2015 0.32 75,000,000 - - - 75,000,000
(Note 1)
= —Z-R§=RA+5A (Hit1)
18 January 2016 0.315 - 80,000,000 - - - 80,000,000
(Note 2) (Note 2)
2 "¥-AT=H (Hr:2) (Hi#2)
Total 120,000,000 80,000,000 - - - 200,000,000
L)
Notes: Hiat
1. These options should be valid for a term of three years 1. ZEEREBMSBA=F B8-F—%

commencing from 16 March 2015. The closing price of the
Company’s shares on 13 March 2015 (the trading day immediately
before the date on which these options were granted) was
HK$0.248.

2. These options should be valid for a term of three years
commencing from 13 January 2016. The closing price of
the Company’s shares on 12 January 2016 (the trading day
immediately before the date on which these options were granted)
was HK$0.30.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
interim period ended 31 December 2016 was estimated as at
the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the

model used:

Dividend yield (%) 0.00
Expected volatility (%) 86
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.134
Expected life of options (year) 1.50
Closing share price at grant date (HK$) 0.3

FZA+TREARBER - ARARGOR =
E-RE=A+=0 (ZEZEBRER
HAHAMNRZSR) KT ER0.248
JT °

2. ZEBBREARBAR=F B-T—RX
F-A+=ZARER - ARARMHRZ
E-RF-A+H (REZSERER
HEHANRZSH) i (ER0.30E

JT ©

RBE-ZF—AR"Ft-_A=t—Hi+HH
HiR > REZBRAEERBREZ A FET
R B R B HALA 148 77 50 — &F @ 27
T RN LG WER RARE
P 2 kR S fgk o TREIIFTERAER
S &

&2 (%) 0.00
T8 HA R 12 (%) 86
#75 [2L B 1 2K (%) 1.134
BRI 2 AFFE () 1.50
RIFLBEZ KWHE (Bx) 0.3
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The expected life of the options is based on management
expectation and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted and
the Group recognised as in note 33, a share option expense
of approximately RMB11,024,000 during the year ended 31
December 2016.

EMPLOYEES’ INTEREST IN SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the employees or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body
corporate.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interest in Shares” above, at no time
during the year under review was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the
SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in the usual course of business are set out in note
36 to the financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction
as defined under the Listing Rules.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
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PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW
SHARES

April Placing

On 20 April 2016, the Company entered into a conditional
placing agreement with a placing agent in relation to (i) the
placing of a maximum of 409,000,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company to not less than six independent placees at
a price of HK$0.166 per Share (“April Placing”), representing
a discount of approximately 19.81% to the closing price of
HK$0.207 per Share on 20 April 2016. The Directors considered
that the April Placing represent an opportunity to raise capital
for the Company while broadening the Shareholder base
and capital base of the Company. Accordingly, the Directors
consider the April Placing is in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

The April Placing was completed on 16 May 2016 and a total
of 409,000,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued to the
placees. The net proceeds raised per Share upon completion
of the April Placing is approximately HK$0.163 per Share. The
whole amount of the net proceeds of approximately HK$66.8
million, with HK$58 million was used for working capital of
money lending subsidiary and the balance was cash at bank.
Details of the April Placing was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 20 April 2016.
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September Subscription

On 6 September 2016, and as supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 7 September 2016, that the Company and
the Subscriber entered into a Subscription Agreement pursuant
to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe and the Company
agreed to issue a total of 207,400,000 new Shares at the price
of HK$0.166 per Share for settlement of the Promissory Note
(P Note). According to the term of the P Note, the Company
might early redeem the whole or any part of the P Note, and the
P Note had interest at the rate of 3% per annum and would be
due on 23 March 2017. Therefore, the issue of the Subscription
Shares capitalized almost the entire outstanding amount
under the P Note and it was expected that completion of the
Subscription Agreement would improve the financial position
of the Company by enlarging its capital base and reducing its
liabilities. As the Subscriber, Ms Lam Wai Ha was a director
of a subsidiary of the Company and hence was a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level. The September
Subscription constituted a connected transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The September Subscription was completed and a total of
207,400,000 shares were allotted and issued to the Subscriber
in November 2016. The Subscription resulted in a dilution of
the existing shareholdings, however, the Company considered
that the dilution was not substantial and the interest of existing
shareholders would not be materially affected. Details of the
September Subscription were set on in the announcements of
the Company dated 6 September 2016 and 7 September 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group during the year and up to the
date of this report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set by the remuneration committee
of the Company on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and

achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to among other Directors and other eligible employees
of the Group. Details of the scheme are set out in note 33 to
the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

BEMEE

ARRIAEZERMAKFH S B A0 &
BRABLABERE G BEARARRAR
Lb 5 1A 3R 78 % R 2 FT AR 1D

TEHEW
FRAAEFTIAFERBARRZMER
SEFETAERRPNEERITRZER
BHY -

B & 3%
$¢lﬁ§i&%‘i&’*ﬁzwi\ﬁ%ﬁm

ARmFHEEEeRBEEBALZER
éE&ﬁd}ﬁﬁ%UaT °

EEZMEIRARRTFHEEEREE
MIHHF N ~ EARBRRERMRE

AR HRMBEEE - FR (EFE
B ASBEESEREMAERERE 2K
B BRI B 2 IR EN M SR MY i

TERER
ARREEEAFRFBERNAFR D
XERWME] —#0 -

Annual Report 2016 77
—E-REFR



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group had no charitable donations during the year ended
31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management discussion
and analysis” in this annual report for a business review and the
future prospects of the Company. Please refer to the notes to
the financial statements in this annual report for the principal
financial risks faced by the Company. Please refer to Note 40 to
the financial statements in this annual report for the important
events of the Company after the financial year ended 31
December 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process and internal controls
of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tong Yiu On (Chairman),
Mr. Cao Ke and Mr. Li Yik Sang. The Audit Committee has
reviewed and discussed with the management and the external
auditor for the financial reporting matters including the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Deloitte”), was auditor
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
2014 and resigned as auditor of the Company with effect from
29 January 2016. Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”)
was appointed as the new auditor of the Company to fill
the vacancy occasioned by the resignation of Deloitte and
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 to 2016 was audited by Elite Partners.

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Sinoref Holdings Limited
Xu Yejun

Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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B LIS 1R e T B R TR 4)

. ELITE PARTNERS CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINOREF HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinoref Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 187, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

B AR

BRER

BPEREZESTMASRONELE
AR ([FBBEFT LR ETEG - &
PIEZFENTHRERNANREP 8
Bl B X AR A IS MR AAENEE] —
R AE TR - RIBBAGMAE
miz (ERBEEEER T (T
STRID - RFPBZR BEEE - YEET
ZSTRIREMBRELT - HAMAE - &M
PRIES RO AT /R RE E T8 2 M & 3 /3 2 AP
BT BRI HER

REEER

REFESREREBERMNERAE - R
RYERABA ARGV BREE/ER
MEE - SESHRERMETBESEY
BoRRMERRPEENBRRGEE - M
BT ELIRERENNER

Annual Report 2016 m
ZE-REFER



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHE SRS

Key audit matter

MREHER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EfmEitnAEERBTFHS=R

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

8 B i R E AT

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had goodwill and
intangible assets of approximately RMB327 million
and RMB63 million respectively, which were allocated
to two cash generating units, namely Money lending
and E-Commerce “CGUSs”.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the Group
appointed an independent external valuer to assess
the recoverable amount of the CGUs, which were
determined by management based on the higher of
value-in-use and fair value less costs of disposal.
The valuation requires significant judgement made by
management in determining the CGUs.

We had identified impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets as a key audit matter because
significant management judgement was used to
appropriately identify the CGUs and to determine
the key assumptions including estimated future
income, operating margins and discount rates. After
the management assessment, management has
concluded that there is no impairment in respect of
goodwill and intangible assets.
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Sinoref Holdings Limited
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Our audit procedures to address the impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
included the following:

e Assessing the management’s identification of
CGUs based on our understanding of the Group’s
operation.

e Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying
cash flow projections used for the determination
of the CGUs prepared by management, including
but not limited to calculation methodology,
assumptions, growth rate, operating margins and
discount rate.

e Comparing the current year actual cash flows
with the prior year cash flow projections to
consider if the projections included assumptions
that were overly optimistic.

e Testing on the accuracy and reliance of the input
data used for the preparation of the cash flow
projection on a sample basis.

e Assessing the sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions being used in the cash flow project
(e.g. using a range of higher discount rates and
lower revenue growth rate).
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Key audit matter
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 P s 5 T (L A £

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB155 million, net of
impairment as set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

We had identified impairment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because significant judgements
had to be made for the assessment of the
recoverability for each debtor including trading
history, credit history and estimated future cash flow.
Management has concluded that approximately
RMB2,012,000 in respect of the impairment of
trade receivables was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated profit or loss.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EfmEitnEERBFHER

Our audit procedures to address the impairment of
trade receivables included the following:

e Testing the accuracy of the ageing of receivables
balances on a sample basis.

e Analysing the receivables provision focusing on
any anomalies in the provisioning methodology
and following up any anomalies, such as unusual
payment terms, through review of customer
payment history.

e Testing on large individual aged receivables
balances, understanding the rationale for
management’s provisioning decisions by reference
to payment patterns during the year as well as
other information available.

e Assessing the level of cash collected by the
business after the year end of past due receivable
balances to consider any additional provisioning
requirements.

BPIREE S RUGRIERENEHRFEREAT -
o RERARNE RS R W SR SRR IR R R EREE -

o DMEWHIAREE  LEBREAEFRTAERZ
B WEBABRZBENRNELEMERNET ZE
lan &2 & e FRIRSK o

o AHERSBERANAKRKRRNBSIASRE 3B
B2EFANNREAREMREERHREEE
BEBRE 2R

o FHERERZBREBIBBUGRIARFES KD 2
BeKkF¥  UEBEEFHEIMNEBENL -

Annual Report 2016
“E-REFER



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHE SRS

Key audit matter

MEREHER

Impairment assessment of loan receivables

P Uy % 0 il 4 BF £

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had loan
receivables of approximately RMB221 million, as
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements. During the year ended 31 December
2016, no impairment had been provided by the
Group on the loan receivables.

We had identified impairment assessment of loan
receivables as a key audit matter because significant
management judgement had to be made for the
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
(e.g. the credit history and estimated future cash
flows).

RZE—XR"F+-_A=+—H8 ' EBEBEBZENWE
A A R #221,000,0007T © 40 4R & B 75 3R K MY 5
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Sinoref Holdings Limited
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EfmEitnAEERBFHER

Our major audit procedures to address the
management’s impairment assessment of loan
receivables included the following:

e We discussed with management if there is any
indicator of impairment of the loan receivables and
accessed the reasonableness of management’s
assessment, in particular, those balances had
been past due.

e \We tested on a sample basis on the settlement
made by the borrowers during the year and their
subsequent settlement with reference to the
repayment schedule.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
such internal control as the directors determined is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHE SRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

m Sinoref Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHE SRS

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2017

Chan Wai Nam, William
Practising Certificate no. P05957

10th Floor,

8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Sinoref Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REBEskAEMEZEKER

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)

Other income

Impairment loss on various assets

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Equity-settled share option
expenses

Loss on early redemption of
promissory note

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic and diluted
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Notes
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11
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTIT
357,840 288,942
(340,735) (315,487)
17,105 (26,545)
2,395 730
(2,012) (143,485)
(20,297) (29,553)
(69,861) (34,653)
(26,612) (32,547)
(11,024) (10,407)
(26,191) -
(5,494) (2,426)
(141,991) (278,886)
4,052 7,618
(137,939) (271,268)
(138,695) (271,432)
756 164
(137,939) (271,268)

(RMB4.86 cents)
(AR#4.86%)

(RMB14.14 cents)
(AR¥E4.86%5)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive expense
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

m Sinoref Holdings Limited
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2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTIT
(137,939) (271,268)
28,213 19,307
28,213 19,307
(109,726) (251,961)
(110,517) (252,132)
791 171
(109,726) (251,961)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Prepaid lease payments

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivables

Loan receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Prepaid lease payments

Restricted bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Tax liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Deferred tax liabilities
Promissory notes

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March

2017 and are signed on its behalf by:
EZE
DIRECTOR

®"RESE
Xu Yejun

At 31 December 2016

RZE—R"F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015

ZE—RFE —HFE

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B st AR®TT AREEF T

18 12,824 12,155

19 327,005 305,823

20 63,309 92,623

21 254 410

403,392 411,011

22 62,298 59,185

23 155,229 213,257

24 12,315 17,100

25 221,241 50,346

45,920 39,455

21 156 156

26 2,054 1,749

26 40,070 83,709

539,283 464,957

27 50,949 40,369

28 29,504 33,710

7,937 8,569

29 84,462 20,361

172,852 103,009

366,431 361,948

769,823 772,959

30 10,243 15,675

31 195,730 207,737

205,973 223,412

563,850 549,547

32 266,401 213,708

295,702 334,883

562,103 548,591

1,747 956

563,850 549,547

ﬁé%%%%m EER_T—tF=4

ﬁé B #E o R SR T3 ImuTﬁﬁ
E
DIRECTOR
FEER

Sin Kwok Wai Ronald

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-Z—R"E+-A=

At 1 January 2015

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of shares upon placing

Recognition of equty settled
share-based payments

Issue of shares Upon acquisition
of subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2015
and at 1 January 2016

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive expense
for the year
Issue of share upon exercising
of warrants
Issue of shares upon placing
Issue of shares
Issue of warrant
Equity settled share option expense

At 31 December 2016
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Sinoref Holdings Limited

Total equity attributable to the owners of the Company

FORREARKRANE

Share Non-

Share ~ Share  Special Statutory options  Warrant Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Subtotal interest Total

2R
k% RAER SURE ZERE BREGE HRER ERGR  RHER it FRBEE it
RMB'000  RMB'OO0 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Noteg) ~ (Note b)
(Wika)  (Hihb)

133,169 188664 46867 48818 - - - 109,030 526,548 - 526548
- - - 5 - - - ) ) 164 (271,268)
- - - - - - 19,300 - 19300 719307
- - - - - - 19300 (271432 (252,132 7 (251961
7941 89513 - - - - - - 127454 - 127454
- - - - 10407 - - - 1047 - 10407
42508 93716 - - - - - - 136,314 - 136314
- = = - - - = - = 785 785
A3708 371,893 46,867 48818 10407 - 19300 (162,402) 548,591 956 549,547
- - - - - - - (138,695)  (138,695) 756 (137,939)
- - - - - - 8178 - 8178 B 28213
- - - - - - 8178 (138,695 (110,517) 791 (109,726)
3 n - - - Ul - - a1 - 97
34364 21,82 - - - - - - 56,189 - 56,189
18296 38428 - - - - - - 5619 - 56719
- - - - - 9,576 - (9,576) - - -
- - - - 1,04 - - - 1,024 - 1,04
06401 432212 46867 48818 21,431 9569 47478 (310,673) 562,103 1747 563,850




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes:

(@)

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of shares of the Company issued as consideration in
exchange for the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the
subsidiaries of the Company arising upon the corporate
reorganisation to rationalise the Group’s structure prior to listing
of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries
are required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, including
enterprise expansion fund and general reserve fund, by way of
appropriations from its statutory net profit (based on the PRC
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries) but before
dividend distributions.

All appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the
board of directors of PRC subsidiaries. The board of directors
of the PRC subsidiaries shall decide on the amounts to be
appropriated based on its profitability each year.

The enterprise expansion fund may be used to increase registered
capital subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities. The
general reserves fund may be used to offset accumulated losses
or increase the registered capital subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

REEDEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

Operating activities
Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest income on bank deposits

Interest expenses

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
prepaid lease payment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets

Share-based payments expenses

Loss on early redemption of promissory notes

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in bills receivables

Increase in loan receivables

Increase in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Increase/(Decrease) in trade and bills payables

Decrease in other payables
and accruals

Net cash used in operations
Income tax paid

Sinoref Holdings Limited
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2016 2015
—E—RE —THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
(141,991) (278,886)
(227) (108)

5,494 2,426

(28) 97

1,618 15,587
2,012 15,396

= 58,007

- 9,800

- 14,993

= 45,289

156 392
34,135 6,636
11,024 10,407
26,191 =
(61,616) (99,964)
(1,964) (12,375)
56,515 31,063
4,785 25,608
(157,042) (5,403)
(5,749) (18,197)
9,894 (11,929)
(7,829) (32,890)
(163,006) (124,087)
(5,836) 2,963




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceed from disposal of a property,
plant and equipment

Net cash (outflow) from acquisition of subsidiaries

(Placement)/Withdrawn of pledged bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares upon placing
Issuance of shares upon exercising of warrants
Interest paid

Repayment of bank borrowings

Proceed from bank and other borrowings

Net cash from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year
Effect of exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year,
representing bank balances and cash

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—h4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARETT
EETRMBAREPH (168,842) (121,124)
REEE
BUF B 227 108
BEME « BER&E (1,642) (9,911)
HEWE - BE MRE
Fr{35108 50 =
WEHB AR Z
Be Ond) F58E - (22,450)
(1750 /BB EMBITER (305) 120
RETHRAAREPH (1,670) (32,133)
& EE
PRI E BB TRM D PT 5 5UE 56,189 127,454
PITE R AE B B ITRD 97 -
BEFIE (1,105) (1,261)
1@33%71%,%? (361) (54)
RITREMBEMGHE 64,462 -
MEFHMERESH 119,282 126,139
BeaRAEEEMRED BN (51,230) (27,118)
EMBERBEEEN
83,709 102,678
EREHHTLE 7,591 8,149
ERACRBESED
LARITE SR IR 2R 40,070 83,709
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 31 March 2017.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new interpretation and amendments to
HKFRSs (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The amendments mainly clarify that the exemption
from preparing consolidated financial statements
is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary
of an investment entity, even if the investment
entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value in
accordance with HKFRS 10. The Company is not
an investment entity. Also, given that the Company
is a listed entity, the consolidation exception set
out in the amendments will not be applicable to
the Company and hence the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments provide guidance on how to
account for the acquisition of a joint operation
that constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS
3 Business Combinations. Specifically, the
amendments state that the relevant principles on
accounting for business combinations in HKFRS
3 and other standards should be applied. The
amendments also require that a joint operator to
disclose the relevant information required by HKFRS
3 and other standards for business combinations.
The amendments require prospective application;
prospectively in annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. The Group did not have any
such transactions in the current year and hence the
application of these amendments has had no impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

()

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that an entity need not
provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS
if the information resulting from that disclosure
is not material (even if the HKFRS contains a list
of specific requirements or describes them as
minimum requirements). The amendments also
give guidance on the bases of aggregating and
disaggregating information for disclosure purposes.
The amendments emphasize that an entity should
consider whether to provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific requirements in
HKFRSs is insufficient to enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance.
Furthermore, the amendments require that an
entity’s share of the other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method should be presented
separately from those arising from the Group, and
should be separated into the share of items that,
in accordance with other HKFRSs: (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met.

As required by the amendments, the share of
other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures had been separately presented and
had been separated into (i) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Other than such a
change in presentation, the application of these
amendments has not resulted in any impact on the
financial performance or financial position of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items
of property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue-based amortisation is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. The
amendments states that such a presumption
can only be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

° when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or

° when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

With regard to the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the Group did not
use revenue-based depreciation method and hence
the amendments have not have any impact on the
Group'’s financial position and financial performance.
Rather, the Group has been using the straight-line
method for depreciation and amortisation for its
property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

()

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Agriculture: Bearer Plants

The amendments define a bearer plant that is a living
plant that:

(@) is used in the production or supply of
agricultural produce;

(b) is expected to bear produce for more than one
period; and

(c) has a remote likelihood of being sold as
agricultural produce except for incidental scrap
sales.

The amendments require that biological assets
that meet the definition of a bearer plant should be
accounted for as property, plant and equipment in
accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS 41. The
produce growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

The application of these amendments has had
no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group is not engaged in
agricultural activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(f)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarized below.

Firstly, the amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce
specific guidance for when an entity reclassifies
an asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to
held for distribution to owners (or vice versa). The
amendments clarify that such a change should be
considered as a continuation of the original plan of
disposal and hence requirements set out in HKFRS 5
regarding the change of sale plan do not apply.

Secondly, the amendments to HKFRS 7 provide
additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing
contract is continuing involvement in a transferred
asset for the purpose of the disclosures required in
relation to transferred assets.

Thirdly, the amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that
the rate used to discount post-employment benefit
obligations should be determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on
high quality corporate bonds. The assessment of
the depth of a market for high quality corporate
bonds should be at the currency level (i.e. the
same currency as the benefits are to be paid). For
currencies for which there is no deep market in
such high quality corporate bonds, the market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds denominated in that currency should be used
instead. The Group did not have any defined benefit
scheme.

The application of these amendments has had
no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15 and
amendments to
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Contingent consideration that will be settled other than
by the delivery of a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is accounted for as a financial liability.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably as
follows:

Sale of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time

all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHRFK ()

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Sale of goods (continued)

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted-average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, bills receivables, loan receivables, other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investments have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and bills receivables and loan receivables, assets are
assessed for impairment on a collective basis even
if they were assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and bills receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

FEFHBE (K)

@I A (&)
EHEE (&)
EREERE (8)

RETHEIZEREE (NEHEK
KB EREEIAREWRER) M
5 AERFE AT 2 ERIRIE -
BRAEENTGRE P HBIE -
U FEES L RREZEBRERE
A /B ¥ 7K 5 [ 48 1 WO R AT 8% A K B
ZR Bk I 77 AR AR L H 3R B R R IR
REEEERBOAIBRRES -

RIRBHEKAINEZEREEM
FOREBBIEERZBREEL
REEAGBHRRASRERS A
BEMNRERMEAR 2 REE
R -

BB 5 EKFIERERRE R
ER D eBEERERE TR -
ETHEECREERD TER
REREBETE - E —HELENX
BRSNS EE - BIEEEES
BR B £ T LA o AR B A E
HZHBRFFALREBEERE - &8
TRk A ZREEZ(ENBRAER -

Annual Report 2016
—E-REEH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other

payables and bank borrowing are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, (where
appropriate), a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the industrial
experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. If the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are less than the original estimated useful
lives due to changes in commercial and technological
environment, such difference will impact the depreciation
charge for the remaining periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses each cash-generating unit annually
to determine whether any indication of impairment exists.
When an indicator of impairment exists, a formal estimate
of the recoverable amount is made, which is considered to
be the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, prepaid lease payments
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy
as disclosed in the relevant part of this section. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to estimate future
cash flows from the cash generating units and to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated allowance of inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on
an assessment of the net realisable value of inventories.
Allowances are applied to inventories where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the net
realisable value is lower than the cost of inventories.
The identification of obsolete inventories requires the
use of judgment and estimates on the conditions and
marketability of the inventories. Where the subsequent
selling prices decline or increase in costs of completion
and those necessary to make the sales, additional
allowance may arise.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires management to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risks associate with the capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt, if necessary.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SMEE

Loans and receivables (including cash Bz & EWRIA (815
and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities e AR

Amortised cost HEAAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, loan receivables, bills receivables,
other receivables, restricted bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and bill payables, other
payables, promissory notes and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), Euro dollars (“EUR”)
and US dollars (“USD”) which are other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities (i.e.
RMB), which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-ZT—

RNE+TZA=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated financial assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets
BE
2016
—E—RE¥
RMB’000
AR®TT

HKD
EUR
USD

BT
BT

e

279,835
283
45

6. &MTAR (&)

(b)

RMB’000
ARETIT

136,336

9

TREAREEZBNRBEER
(&)

5 ERE (&)
gER (8)
AL BN BRI RAIMNESHE

ZEMEENERABE R
BT :

Liabilities
&
2016 2015
ZE—RE —E—h1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARETI
283,603 226,496

The financial assets subject to foreign currency risk
represent the bank balances denominated in HKD
and USD, trade receivables, loan receivables and
other receivables, denominated in HKD held by the
Group.

The financial liabilities subject to foreign currency
risk represent the trade payables, other payables,
promissory notes and bank borrowings denominated
in HKD held by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% appreciation or depreciation of the HKD, EUR
and USD against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the possible
change in foreign exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a
5% change in foreign currency rate. A (negative)/
positive number indicates an increase/decrease
in post-tax loss for the year where HKD, EUR and
USD strengthens 5% against the RMB. For a 5%
weakening of HKD, EUR and USD against RMB,
there would be an equal but opposite impact on the
post-tax loss for the year.

HKD BT
UsSD

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risks of changes in
market interest rates related primarily to the Group’s
loan receivables with floating interest rates.

The table set out below demonstrates the sensitivity
to a reasonably possible change in interest rates in
the current year, with all other variable held constant,
of the Group’s loss before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings).

2016 —E—XRE
RMB AR
RMB AR
2015 —E—hHE
RMB AR
RMB AR

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 15% (2015: 13%) and 49% (2015:
29%) of the total trade receivables which was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively. At 31 December
2016, the Group has concentration of credit risk as
45% (2015: 28%) and 84% (2015: 74%) of the total
loan receivables, which was due from the Group’s
largest borrower and the five largest borrowers,
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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6.

134

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the

effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial

liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

As at 31 December 2016

Trade payables

Other payables

Bank and other borrowings
Promissory notes

As at 31 December 2015

Trade payables
QOther payables
Bank borrowing
Promissory notes

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

WZB-RE
+ZA=+-A
E5EME
Efp 5B
FORERES
RAEE

RZB-1%
t2A=+-H
BARNTE
HREMTE
RiRE
ESED

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate
miEsy
ERi®

%

%

6.4
30

6. &@&mMIR (&)
(b) LRMEAMEEZENHRBEE
(#&)
BB A
REERBDESRRME - K
SEHERKEREERERRR
WENAREEESE 2R RR
SEBEWMKE - KERERE
MERBHTE -
TRAVNAEB ZETESH
BECHRTALOREA - TX
BEAEEBELENRZETR
HE iz eRBERBBRER
SHRH -
More than
On demand 1 year Total
or less than but less than  undiscounted
3 months Within 5 years cash flows Carrying
BEXE 1 year Bl R amounts
i3ER 15/ BORsE  REREER FEd
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
50,949 - - 50,049 50,949
1,21 - - 1,21 1,211
- 87,497 - 87,497 84,462
- - 202,733 202,733 195,730
62,220 87,497 202,733 352,450 342,412
40,369 - - 40,369 40,369
11,436 - - 11,436 11,436
- 21,695 - 21,605 20,361
- - 257,124 257,124 207,731
51,806 21,605 257,124 330,584 279,903




6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair values measurements of financial
instruments

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

REVENUE

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods REHEERHBA
Revenue from money lending business 3 B & ZE AL A

OPERATING SEGMENTS

HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker (the executive
directors) (“CODM?”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance.

6.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—F+-_A=+—B8ILFE

®MI A (&)
(c) =MIAZAVEIE
EERRNRAMIERER AR

RZEMEENERABZR
EEEEQFERE -

A
WAR DT
2016 2015
—E—RFE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

345,303 283,610

12,537 5,332

357,840 288,942
EESE

BEMBEREENESR[EE D
B Esk - MR E DN BEKIEAR
SEHERERE s NFE2HRDEER
BEE 2EANHE2Hs B EHH
FEEEREKE (BT %%)(FIEE
BERARE]) BE  UHIDEE
TERD I RFRFFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—"E+-_A=+—BLEE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to four
operating segments focusing on (i) the manufacture and
sale of advanced steel flow control products; (i) the
manufacture and sale of paper converting equipment
and other relating equipment, (iiij money lending; and
(iv) e-commerce. These operating segments have been
identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies which
conform to HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the
CODM.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments:

Segment revenue and results

8.

EESW (W)

REE & 25BN M EEE D
BB BUER()BUE K B B = v K
MEm  (NHEMHERRIN TR
R EH A AERARR A  (I)RE R ¢ (iv)
ETHEK REFKEDBIHERT
EEBMBHRE LR 2 S BER
A AMERREM &R - LA
TELERREER R

BRI 2REEENRE DN AKH
WARZEEDITIT

SBBARRE

BE_Z—XRF+-A=+—HL

For the year ended 31 December 2016

£E

Manufacture

and sale

Manufacture of paper

and sale of converting

advanced equipment

steel flow and other

control relating Money

products equipment lending E-Commerce Consolidated

BERME

BERME HENMIRG

HERAK REf

ARER il oE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TRT AE®TT AR®TR AR%TT  AE¥TR:
Revenue WA 149,795 34,410 12,537 161,098 357,840
Gross profit/(loss) £ /(£8) (18,968) 5,925 11,108 19,040 17,105
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ (B8) (72,802) (2,847) 9,053 (28,331) (94,927)
Unallocated corporate income ~ RAEATMA 616

Staff costs (including retirement 8 TR A (BERE

benefit scheme contributions) &%t &4t 30) (1,868)
Unallocated corporate expenses A7t A AIf S (45,812)
Loss before taxation BHAIER (141,991)

136 Sinoref Holdings Limited
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8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Revenue

Gross profit/(loss)

Segment loss

Unallocated corporate income
Staff costs (including retirement
benefit scheme contributions)
Operating lease rentals
Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss before taxation

BHABE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

8. HESE (&)
SEBARRE (])
BHE_ZT—hFT_A=1+—HIE
FE

Manufacture
and sale
Manufacture of paper
and sale of converting
advanced equipment
steel flow and other
control relating Money
products equipment lending  E-Commerce  Consolidated
RERHE
RERHE  BRNIR
RimK KAt
BREM B W& ETHE% ira
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARET ARETTT
231,696 25,069 5,332 26,845 288,942
(37,272) 2,391 3,806 4,531 (26,545)
(165,621) (65,422) (35,596) (2,494) (259,133)
1
(1,954)
(122)
(17,678)
(278,886)

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each
segment include depreciation, amortisation and
impairment, but without allocation of certain administration
costs and other income. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

DEEEESE D BELNER (2%
e #BELRE) BXESRSE
TITBRAARREMBUEA - LTI &
R B KRR EEEER
REBENTTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XAF+-A=t+—ALEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8. WERN® (#])
Segment assets and liabilities SBEERAR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_ZT—XE+-A=+—HL
£E

Manufacture

and sale

Manufacture of paper

and sale of converting

advanced equipment

steel flow and other
control relating Money

products equipment lending E-Commerce Consolidated
BERHME
BERME HENMIRG
Bk REf
BRER R

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARRTRT  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARWTR

ASSETS gE

Segment assets ANUBE 204,861 41,357 317,906 367,051 931,175
Unallocated corporate assets ~ RABARIEE 11,500
Consolidated total assets DABERRE 942,675
LIABILITIES RfR

Segment liabilities PHER 35,110 41,925 66,050 32,111 175,196
Unallocated corporate liabilties #A &A= AR 203,629
Consolidated total liabilities GRARRER 378,825

Sinoref Holdings Limited

136 e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRF+-A=+—ALEE

8. KEES® (W)

SHRERAR (W)

BE_Z—XRF+-A=+—HL
FE (&)

Manufacture
and sale
Manufacture of paper
and sale of  converting
advanced equipment
steel flow and other
control CE Money
products equipment lending  E-Commerce Others  Consolidated
HERSE
HERSE MEMIRG
EiRAK Rt
HRER R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTTE  ABRTR  ABRRTT  AERTT  AEKTR  ARRTR
Other segment information ~ EfiAHEH
Amounts included in the meastre 8 A B BB
of segment profit or loss or PHEERHANRE
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets ~ JEEEBEERE 1,083 400 - - 209 1,642
Depreciation of property 0% BRRRENE
plant and equipment ] 984 6 121 409 1,618
Interest income EVON - (191) (54) - (32) 2n)
Interest expense HEm% - 1,105 - - 4,389 5,494
Interest tax expense FERER - - 1,494 666 - 2,160
Impaiment loss recognised B AR BERY
in respect of trade receivables  EEE 1,534 478 - - - 2,012
Amortisation of prepaid lease ~ BFEETEES
payments - 156 - - - 156
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EF/AEEH - 953 - 33,182 - 34,135
Research and development costs  HFEEA 26,612 - - - - 26,612
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

Consolidated

)

RMB'000
ARBTT

849,193

26,775

875,968

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8. WERE (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) SHBEERAR (K)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-FT-AFT-A=+t—HL

FE
Manufacture
and sale
Manufacture of paper
and sale of converting
advanced equipment
steel flow and other
control relating Money
products equipment lending  E-Commerce
RERHE
RERHE  ARNIR
Rk REM
BRER BERE e EFA%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
ASSETS KE
Segment assets NibEE 280,790 36,646 182,953 348,804
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AHEAAEE
Consolidated total assets GRAEBE
LIABILITIES i
Segment liabilities PHERE 39,107 35,933 2,831 33,351

Unallocated corporate liablities KA EAT & &

Consolidated total liabilities GREfELT

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

111,222

215,199

326,421



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

Manufacture
and sale of
advanced
steel flow

control
products

HERHE
Btk
BRER
RMB’000
ARETT

Other segment information XS &&H
Amounts included in the measure 318 B 5|5 Bigs

of segment profit or loss or PHEERHANEE

segment assets:
Addtion to non-current assets  JERHEERE 624
Depreciation of property, 0% BEREENE

plant and equipment 13,699
Impairment loss recognised B HEUGUERRN

in respect of trade receivables  HEEE 10316
Impairment loss recognised 0% BRERREEDN

in respect of property, AEEE

plant and equipment 34,607
Impairment loss recognisedin ~ BEFEEREDFESE

respect of intangible assets =
Impairment loss recognisedin ~ #ERTEEF AR

respect of prepaid lease HEEE

payments 9,393
Impaiment loss recognised in -~ SFEEEANHESRE

respect of goodwil -
Interest income FEHA (59)
Interest expense 8 A% -
Interest tax expense FEHEY -
Amortisation of prepaid lease ~ BREEFELEH

payments 235
Amortisation of intangible assets AR -
Research and development costs  FEF A 32,547

Manufacture
and sale
of paper

converting
equipment
and other
relating
equipment
HERHE
HEMIRME
Rt
iR
RMB'000
ARETT

1672

5,080

23,400

9,800

5,600

6,542
®)
1,261

156
1,297

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

8. WBES (W)

SHBRERRAR (W)

HE_2—AF+-_A=+—81t
FE (&)

Money
lending  E-Commerce Others  Consolidated
i 1A Eft A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR¥TR  AR%Tr  ARETR
= 60 9,220 9,911
1 18 197 15,087
- - - 15,396
- - - 58,007
- - - 9,800
- - - 14,993
38,747 - - 45,289
@) @) (1) (108
- - 1,165 2,426
1,515 1,069 - 2,584
= = = 391
= 5,339 = 6,636
= = = 32,047
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—"E+-_A=+—BLEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8.

Information about geographical areas

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue by geographical market:

The People Republic of China (“PRC”)
(country of domicile)

Europe

Asia (other than the PRC and
Hong Kong)

North America

Africa

Oceania

Hong Kong

Non-current assets

Hong Kong
PRC

142 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZERERAF

hEARLME ([HE])
(REEER)

BOM

DN (PEETFEEREE)

1M
FEM
RAM
B

&
&

EESW (W)

ERE

TRERANEEZRMETISE D W

WADHT :

For the year ended
31 December
BE+_-_A=+—HILEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTE  ARBTR
141,995 214,087
124,111 45,842
15,547 10,064
56,682 10,531
- 622
5,597 424
13,908 7,372
357,840 288,942
ERBEE
As at 31 December
»+=-RA=+—H
2016 2015
—g—xE LS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
390,639 408,323
12,753 2,688
403,392 411,011




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—8HLEE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8. BER® ()

Information about geographical areas (continued) HWERH (#)

The non-current asset information above is based on the

location of assets.

Information about major customers

No individual customer contributed more than 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016

(2015: Nil).

OTHER INCOME

Interest income on bank deposit
Exchange gain
Sundry income

FTFEHD, -

IREFEHR

LRFRDEENERNEREE

BE-FT-~F+t=A=t+—AL
FE - UREBIES AAKEBER

BIBI0OBWA (ZBE—HE © &) -

9. Hfllk A
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFIT
IRITIF A F B U A 277 108
PE 5 U &= 1,153 569
HMIBA 965 53
2,395 730
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mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—"E+-_A=+—BLEE

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON VARIOUS ASSETS

Trade receivables

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest charge on promissory notes
Interest charge on bank borrowing

Sinoref Holdings Limited

144 puper IS

B 5 WA
BIEE
BNHEERR
k3

AR BB EF S

=]
[En
8
[\

FIRITEE AR

S

10. EEEENRERE

2016 2015
—E—XE —T—FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTFT ARMETIT
2,012 15,396
- 58,007
- 9,800
- 14,993
- 45,289
2,012 143,485

11. MERF
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTT ARMETIT
4,389 1,165
1,105 1,261
5,494 2,426
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 12. RRAABIR
2016 2015
—B—RE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
Loss before taxation has been M Fi R E IR SRR (REA)
arrived at after charging (crediting): TFI|IE B BER -
Auditor’s remuneration ZE NN & 651 553
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  F&{ 18 & kI8 # 8 156 391
Amortisation of other intangible assets — ELfth 8 12 & /2 14 415 34,135 6,636
Cost of inventories recognised as ERAERIZ
an expense FERAK 292,580 306,195
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BE K&
equipment HEIE 1,618 15,587
Minimum lease payments in respect of  BREWAZWE L
office premises &ERERIE 1,490 544
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME BEN
plant and equipment e () /B8 (28) 97
Net exchange (gain)/loss BN (Wa),/ B3 (1,153) (211)
Research and development costs T ES AR
(included in other expenses) (FIAHMFET) 26,612 32,547
Staff costs (including directors’ B TRA
emoluments) (BEESEHE)
— Salaries and other benefits — e MEMER 36,572 39,626
- Retirement benefit scheme — RORAEFI T B R
contributions 2,606 3,297
— Share-based payments — DARR D BERERT K 11,024 10,407
50,202 53,330
Less: Staff costs included in research A WA I N
and development costs BT RA (2,009) (2,166)
48,193 51,164

Annual Report 2016
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

13. TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax:
— Current year

— Under provision in prior years

Deferred tax:
— Current year

13. RIA

FEFER -
—AFE
- BEFERETR
ERERIA
—AFE

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% (2015:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong

Kong for both years.

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax was made

based on the estimated taxable profits calculated in

accordance with the relevant income tax laws and

regulations applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the

“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

146 Sinoref Holdings Limited
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2016 2015
—g—x LT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®TT ARBFIT
2,160 993

- 1,591

(6,212) (10,202)
(4,052) (7,618)

RAEFE > FEEMNESHIIRMG
REBEEMERBEN216.5%
“E—NhF  16.5%) FE o

B R AT S HRE TIR B 5 R
Rva N GZERR AR E P EHE
RAZBRARBBARKERAE)
R -

BIE(CRECEMBR A (D%
i8R ]) ROEEMEHEAEIEIF
7 - PR E AR R A25% -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. TAXATION (continued)

On 24 August 2015, one of the PRC subsidiaries obtained
a Chinese High-Tech Enterprise Certificate which is valid
for three years. According to GuoShuiHan [2009] No. 203,
entities qualifying for the Hi-tech status could enjoy a PRC
Enterprise Income Tax preferential treatment starting from
the year of obtaining the Hi-tech certificate. As a result,
this PRC subsidiary was subject to a PRC Enterprise
Income Tax of 15% for three years commencing from
2015.

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008 No.
1, dividend distributed out of the profits of PRC entities
generated after 1 January 2008 are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax which is withheld by the PRC entity
at 5% of the dividend distributed.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB521,429,000 (2015: RMB408,068,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such unused tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
All the unrecognised tax losses will expire before 2019.

13.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

MR ()

RZFE—RFNA=+WMNH &
—XHEHBARCESTESH
BMCXEFE  BRH=F - BIK
Bl i FK[2009]55203%% « RF & = &
MEEERNER GBS INRMN
TEFEEFRAZPRECERS
MEBFB - At - ZPBEHMERQ
AT —AF R =FR15%H
MR REMRSEH -

1B 95 B B I3 R B KRR 4B B
& 2 H 8B & (B $12008 158 X
") RZZTENF—FA—HZ#ER
P E B8 am A R R 2 IR B R A
MPBEERER YHEZTEE
BBIREHIKAREM5%TEH o

RERIPR ~EEHREARABDAR
TE 18 AR 521,429,000 (=&
— R F : AR%408,068,0007T) °
A ARSI AT - AREETE
BB &EFR - W ERZE RS
BHEEERARTCHEEE - A
ERBABEBEEENR T —NF
Z Rl &R
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

13. TAXATION (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

13. RIE (&)

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before taxation

Notional tax at the applicable tax rate
to losses in the tax jurisdictions
concerned

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Reversal of withholding tax on
undistributed earnings

Deferred tax upon revaluation of assets

Under/(Over) provision in prior years

Taxation credit charge for the year

148 Sinoref Holdings Limited
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FABEX HEEERE
E SR 2 R AT R SRR T

m M EAE

2016 2015
—E—R¥E —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥EFTT
PR R ES 18 (141,991) (278,886)
PIEBERIE R AR
EBRIEEAT R
HETHIE (32,560) (68,532)
TAMBRY 2 B8
6,949 1,991
HARBIBAZ BT E
(65) (38)
RIERBIAE B M E 27,836 67,572
HRDIRAF 2 BNF
(871) (9,343)
BESHHERZELEHIE (5,341) (859)
BEFERETR
(EBEEHE) - 1,591
FRHIBE L H (4,052) (7,618)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRF+-A=+—ALEE

14. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. EERFETRARBZEHE
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENNENTEESREEZTHA
and the Chief Executive, were as follows: BEZMemT -

Retirement
Performance benefit
Salaries and related scheme  Share-based

allowances bonus contributions payments
REAAE  BOEHHE UEihE
FeR R 431 4] ERR

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABRTR  ARWTRE  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARWTR  ARWTR

For the year ended BE-Z-RE1ZB
31 December 2016: St-ALEE:
Executive directors: #igs:
Xu Yejun RER 379 120 - 9 - 508
Sin Kwok Wai, Ronald il 541 - - 15 - 556
Non-executive director: FES:
Chow Chi Wa AEE 205 - - - - 205
Yip Sum Yu £ 123 - - - - 123

Independent non-executive BUHTES

directors:

Li Yik Sang E3Y 103 - - - - 103
Tong Yiu On EREZ 103 - - - - 103
Cao Ke 7 103 - - - - 103

1,567 120 = 24 = 1,701
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

14. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2015:

Executive directors:
Xu Yejun
Sin Kwok Wai, Ronald

Non-executive director;
Chow Chi Wa
Yip Sum Yu

Independent non-executive

directors:

Yao Enshu (resigned on
10 June 2015)

Li Yik Sang

Tong Yiu On

Cao Ke (appointed on
10 June 2015)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

EMZEBRERAE

HE-Z-1%1ZR
St-ALEE:

BiEe:
HEE

FHES
L35

BUHIES:

14. EERERITHRARZHS

(#8)
Retirement
Performance benefit
Salaries and related scheme  Share-based
Fees allowances bonus  contributions payments Total
BEREE  RURNHE WA
we  HekEk LIEA 3 BB At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
348 120 - 9 - 41
515 - - 29 1,301 1,845
176 - - - - 176
115 - - - 1,301 1,416
40 - - - - 40
% - - - - %
% - - - - %
54 - - - - 54
1,440 120 - 38 2,602 4,200




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Xu Yejun is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. Mr. Xu
Yejun was resigned as the Chief Executive with effect from
January 2015.

Mr. Lu Yongchao was appointed as the Chief Executive of
the Company with effect from January 2015.

The performance related bonus is determined by the
performance of individuals.

None of the directors waived any emoluments for both
years.

There was no compensation paid during the financial
year or receivable by directors or any employees for
loss of office as a director of any member of the Group.
No payment was made by the Group or receivable
by directors or any employees for both years as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Company.

14.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

EERFRITRARZHS
()

BREBLENRBARBITHRAESR -
EXBBERMEBEBIESITR
BERURBAZAEZME - 1RE
BEREB T -AF - ARZEIE
TTER#BEL

EKBEER_ZE-—HAF—ARE
ERERNRBITRARE -

HERIVEE A RBEEARR

B o

Rz MmEFE  BEEEHERN
T

RAFBRFEARES X EE
SHEMREE R KR EANEBEAIK
B XA B0 E =B AL 1M 8 U ) ({1
& RMEFE  AEBEHREH
IMEEZHIMAREBEMBAR
NEIFMNBARRENHES -
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—"E+-_A=+—BLEE

15.

16.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 15. EEE#&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EREBETAERFATER M
Group, two (2015: two) were directors of the Company Z(ZZE—RHF MB) BEAREZ
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note EF HESBE R EXHF13F %
13 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2015: B-MRTIT=%(ZFE—1F:=%)
three) individuals were as follows: AT ZHl&mT :
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREET T
Salaries and allowances e MERL 2,345 478
Retirement benefit scheme RRAEFFT B3R
contributions 31 22
Share-based payments VAR 0 A E R 5K = 1,301
2,376 1,801
Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZMENTFUTEREZA :
2016 2015
ot L¢3 —T—hF
Number of Number of
employee employee
BERAE EE A
Up to RMB1,000,000 =% % AR¥1,000,0007C 1 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,001702
AR#1,500,0007T 2 1

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZERER DA

16.

Bz 2

AARWERMNSEZRGEE =
T-XNER—ZE—REF+=—A=+
—HIEFEZRE  BE®BFRHR
VAR R 22 s R AT AR B, o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss BiR

Loss for the year attributable to MEREARREEEE
the owners of the Company for [P VNGIE 2= PN
the purpose of basic and e FE B 1R

diluted loss per share

Number of shares Bir& B

Weighted average number of ordinary izt EGIRER R
shares for the purpose of basic and BEEEMERZ
diluted loss per share 38 A% N #E S 152X

The calculation of diluted loss per share for each of the
two years had not taken into consideration the assumed
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as it
would reduce the loss per share.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—8HLEE

. BIREBIR

ARREEARIEERELRREE
ERTRBIA T 8URETE

2016 2015
—F—RF —¥-AF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

(138,695) (271,432)
Number of Number of
shares shares
& H & E
2016 2015
=l —T-If
’000 ’000
TFBg T
2,853,748 1,919,628

AEMEFESFZEREERR
I EAF ABRRITEARR A M ARITHE
ZEEE HESEHERERR

9\0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:
At 1 January 2015

Additions

Acquired on acquisition
of subsidiaries

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015 and
at 1 January 2016

Additions
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016

Depreciation and impairment:

At 1 January 2015

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals

Impairment loss recognised in
profit or loss

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015 and
at 1 January 2016

Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Exchange realignment
At 31 December 2016

Carrying values:
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

18. M3 « B R s

Furniture Plant,
and fixtures  machinery
and office and Motor
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
REARKRER BE BER
BF  HBOZRM id RE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT  ARETT AREBTT  ARETR  ARETE
B#:
R=Z-1%F—A—H 64,468 4,222 113,457 8,706 190,853
NE 9,214 90 552 55 9,911
WERBATREA
- 186 - - 186
HE - - - (147) (147)
X A% 615 22 - - 637
+ZA=+-0k
RZB-"F-f-H 74,297 4,520 114,009 8,614 201,440
NE — 235 165 1,242 1,642
L& - - - (221) (221)
[EH A% 681 72 - - 753
RIB-RE
+ZA=+-H 74,978 4,827 114,174 9,635 203,614
HERME
R=Z-1%—H—-H 11,434 884 96,876 6,523 115,717
EREE 3,698 671 10,261 957 15,587
&7 = = - (50) (50)
RERNRER L
HEEE 48,405 2,409 6,086 1,107 58,007
BB 8 16 - - 24
R-B-1%
+ZRA=+-A%k
RZ8-"E-f-H 63,545 3,980 113,223 8,537 189,285
EREE 1,134 226 93 165 1,618
= 5 - - - (199) (199)
FEH AR 32 54 - - 86
RZE-RE
+ZA=+-H 64,711 4,260 113,316 8,503 190,790
IRE(E
RIB-RE
+ZA=1+-H 10,267 567 858 1,132 12,824
i
+-RA=+—-H 10,752 540 786 77 12,155




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s
buildings with a net carrying value of RMB389,000 (2015:
RMB1,121,000) were pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.5% - 18%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter
Furniture and fixtures and  18%
office equipment

Plant, machinery and 9%
equipment
Motor vehicles 18%

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and are held
under medium term leases.

No impairment loss has been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, as a result
of the continuous decline in the performance of the
Group, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable
amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
The review led to the recognition of an impairment loss of
RMB58,007,000, which has been recognised in profit or
loss. The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have
been determined on their value in use. The discount rate
in measuring the amounts of value in use for manufacture
and sale of advanced steel flow control products segment
and the manufacture and sale of paper converting
equipment and other related equipment segment were
16.53% and 13.57%, respectively.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

18. Y13k - E R EfE (&)

RZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H0 &
EECERETEEFEAARKE
389,000 (ZE—HF: ARM
1,121,0007T) K9 F - DAEIS 52 HA
RITEE ©

Lt BERRERBEEAE
BOEMEE BEMGFBREERIA
THFEXRFEREMGBF A ERFEH
ZHE -

BF 4.5% — 18%

HEWMERE 20% S ILTHER
B E B%E

REAREER 18%

%QZ&%

HE - e 9%

B
RE 18%

BFANFEAM - WRES HE
OESE I

RBEE-_T-—R"F+-_A=+—H
IFE - SERRREEE -

REE-ZZT—RAF+=-A=+—H
mEE*EMK%ImﬁﬁﬁN
%-$%@ﬁﬁ%¥»ﬁ%&mﬁ
WA E & BETTEE - BEE
ﬁ%%ﬁ@%%AE%%omom
TL MZEREEREBZ AR
HEZEEHTKE S %Eﬁfﬁ@
AEBEET EREREESW
HHKIERE oD S REE R HE
MRMIREREMEBARED S
WERABEESERNTREERS AR
16.53% K% 13.57% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—"E+-_A=+—BLEE

19. GOODWILL

Cost:

At 1 January

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Exchange realignment

At 31 December

Accumulated impairment:
At 1 January

Provided for the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 December

Carrying value:
At 31 December

15
n—HA—8
W BB A
PE 5 AR

R+—A=+—H
ZEipE
R—A—H
FEREE
fE 5

R+=-—A=+—8”

WREE :
W+=A=+—8

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generated units
(“CGU”) identified according to business segment as

follows:

Money lending
E-Commerce

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZERER DA

BIHH

19. B #

2016 2015
—E—RFE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEF T
351,112 6,542

- 333,058

23,866 11,512
374,978 351,112
45,289 -

- 45,289

2,684 -
47,973 45,289
327,005 305,823

HEESEEAKERATERS
MEEANRSELEV ((ReEL

B ) :
2016 2015
—g—x7 LS
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARNTR
75,895 70,978
251,110 234,845
327,005 305,823




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. GOODWILL (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Money lending

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group acquired 90% issued share capital of Time
Credit Limited and goodwill of approximately
RMB103,318,000 was recognised upon completion
of the acquisition.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation adopted cash flow projections
covering a 5-year period, based on financial budgets
approved by the management with discount rate of
16% (2015: 15.37%) per annum. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated with 3% growth
rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin. Such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations of
the market development. No impairment loss was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB38,747,000).

E-Commerce

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group acquired the entire issued share capital
of Soaring International Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Soaring International Group”) and
goodwill of approximately RMB229,740,000 was
recognised upon completion of the acquisition.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation adopted cash flow projections
covering a 5-year period, based on financial budgets
approved by the management with discount rate
of 14.12% per annum. Cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated with 2% growth
rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin. Such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations of
the market development. No impairment loss has
been recognised for this CGU for the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

19. HE ($8)

(i)

(ii)

BE

REE-_ZT—RE+=-A=+
—BLFE  AEBKETK
HEEBR AR Z90%CE 1T
FEAS - IR U BE SEAK 18 FE SR R
249 AR #103,318,0007T °

BeEASM 2 EBERED
RIBEFEREETEETE ° %aT
ERBAEREE B &R BT
BEERFTREFF16% (=
T—FF :15.37%) B9 A FH
BARSRETER - M
B 2L B TIIRIEI%H 1L
REHHE - FHEBFENE
HEBRREBIEEEHEER
EFEHELRA S ml 2@
e BT I EREM
MLE%E&*@Fﬁ%%ﬁ
BHFEERASE - REE—=

NFE+Z_A=+— Hiif

MERZREEE (T —X
F . AR¥38,747,0007T) °
B
REBEE_ZT—RH%E+ = H

=+—BLEE A5H
¢ B T Soaring International
Holdings Limited X E B &
7] ([Soaring International&
E|) 22BERTRA - TH
W TR EEREEHARE
229,740,0007T °

ReELEBEUZAIKEEFED
BEBEFEREESEET ° &t
EERBEREREREE
BEERTREEF14.12%
MNAFHRAARSRETEA -
AFEBRZEESRETIRE2%
WIERXESE - EREEE
WHMEZRREBFEAEH
EREFEHRESTEA L
ZhET R - ARG HER
BumBEERAREREET
BERNBHEL -B#E_T
—R"ERZE-RAFT+ZA=
T—HLEFE  SEAURE
EFBUERBERS -
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B B IS SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HLFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

At 1 January 2015

Exchange realignment

Arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries

At 31 December 2015 and
at 1 January 2016

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:

At 1 January 2015

Provided for the year

Impairment loss

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015 and
at 1 January 2016

Provided for the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

@ Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERAF

B :
JrA——
PE 5 3%
A U BB /B A )
MESE

—hF—A—H

W-E—h%F
+=-A=+—HER
W-—E—XFE—HF—H

ME H R

—NE
+=A=+—H

R HMERRE

R-_ZE—hF—HF—H

FERE

EEE

IE 5 R

I

=
i

20. EELRE

Technology Customer
know-how relationship Total
SHHEW ERRFE #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT ARBTT
2,236 10,733 12,969
2,110 — 2,110
94,970 - 94,970
99,316 10,733 110,049
6,724 - 6,724
106,040 10,733 116,773
159 760 919
5,563 1,073 6,636
1,853 7,947 9,800
71 - 71
7,646 9,780 17,426
33,182 953 34,135
1,903 - 1,903
42,731 10,733 53,464
63,309 - 63,309
91,670 953 92,623




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

21.

The above intangible assets have finite useful life. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the following periods:
Technology know-how 3 to 10 years

Customer relationship 10 years

No impairment loss has been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, as a result of
the decline in the performance of the manufacture and
sale of paper converting equipment and other relating
equipment segment, the Group carried out a review of
the recoverable amount of the Group’s technology know-
how and customer relationship. The review led to the
recognition of an impairment loss of RMB9,800,000, which
has been recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant asset have been determined on
their value in use. The discount rate in measuring the
amounts of value in use was 13.57%.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent leasehold
land in the PRC under medium term lease and are
amortised to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income over the lease term of 50
years.

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

FRBEE
MENEE

Non-current asset
Current asset

SREREME AT

20.

21.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

BRLRE (H)

iR A E A A AR A ES -
ST AR TS A T MR
S -

HARAM
BEFBIE

3E10%F
104

WHE-F—A<E+-A=+—8
L - BERRRERE -

REBEE-_Z—AF+=A=+—8
LHFE BREEREERFRNT
BEREMABERESBZERET
B AEBRASEENEBEN R
BEFHERNAKESHEETES -
ZECEYR B NERREE
B A R #9,800,0007T - HH & E
MmERESEEKREFEREEE
Eeo ARGTEFERAEENITEXA
13.57% °

RfHHEAREA

AREBENBENEEFRELRSEH
TREFHEOFTEIHEL -
YRR HA0FMBERELRAER
KEMEE W SRR T -

2016
—E—RFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TT AREETF T
254 410
156 156
410 566
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

21.

22.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

No impairment loss of prepaid lease payments has been
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, as a result of
the decline in the performance of the manufacture and
sale of advanced steel flow control products segment and
the manufacture and sale of paper converting equipment
and other relating equipment segment, the Group carried
out a review of the recoverable amount of the Group’s
prepaid lease payments. The review led to the recognition
of an impairment loss of RMB14,993,000. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant asset have been determined
on their value in use. The discount rate in measuring
the amounts of value in use for manufacture and sale of
advanced steel flow control products segment and the
manufacture and sale of paper converting equipment
and other related equipment segment were 16.53% and
18.57% respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land with a net carrying value of RMB410,000 (2015:
RMB566,000) was pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials Rk
Work-in-progress R
Finished goods BURK fh
Less: Allowance for inventories B FEREE

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERBERAAE

21.

RHERRIT (8)

RBE_Z-—R"F+A=+—H
LFEE HERRBRNEEREAZ
BEEE RBEE-_Z—AF+=
A=+—BIFE - BAREERH
EmmilKIERE®RD A RR
EREERRINTRE R H M EE
REDEHZRBTE  REEHRAE
SEMANEEFREN KD SRR
EHEE  ZEETEYHERRMEES
B A R 14,993,000t ° A &
FWTH&@%%’EEEEE%{E@%

o ANETERERIHE S il K
Tzﬁ?‘fuu’\*ﬁlfx&% ERHEAR
MIHREREMAERERE D B E
REENIT IR XD 5 R16.53% K&
13.57% °

NR-BE—RE+-_A=+—0H " &
SEEEBEETEREEFEAARE
410,000 (ZE— R F: AR
566,0007T) MHEE i - ARG
HASRITIEE ©

22. ¥R

RMB’000
AR®TT

RMB’000
ARETT

12,511
17,624
33,109

10,522
22,739
26,870

63,244
(946)

60,131
(946)

62,298 59,185
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit period granted by the Group to certain
customers is within 180 days (2015: within 180 days),
while payment from other customers are due immediately
when goods are delivered. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables presented based on the
goods delivery date at the end of the reporting period,
which approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates:

0 — 30 days 0Z30H
31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 - 90 days 61%290H
91 — 120 days 91£120H

121 — 180 days
181 days to within 1 year

121£180H
181HE1FURA

At 31 December 2016, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB110,720,000 (2015: RMB166,293,000),
which are past due as at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

23. EHEIKRIA

AEEMETEFPFEECEESRR
180B AR (ZE—HF : 180 A
W) - MEAME P AERKEE AN
B U TARBARARRBREER
@A A A (A% g M AR A E
i) 2% 28 5 EWHKIERER 5
T

2015
—E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
24,950 21,808
13,831 22,753
13,617 20,576
13,552 38,956
17,443 17,872
71,836 91,292
155,229 213,257

RZZT—R"F+=ZA=+—H8" &
EEC B SRV FKIBEKRBREERER
®EABARK110,720,0007T (==
—RF : AR#¥166,293,0007T) Z
FEWER  ERBRRBRE@E -
MEAREBE W AR ELRERBBRESE -
AEBITER S EEHIEETME
e
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—"E+-_A=+—BLEE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired:

0 - 30 days 0E30H

31 - 60 days 31£260H

61 — 90 days 61£290H

91 — 120 days 91F120H

121 — 180 days 1212180H
181 days to within 1 year 181HE1F LA

The Group has not provided for certain trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired because the directors
of the Company consider that those receivables are
recoverable based on the good payment record of the
customers and long established trading history with these
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

At beginning of the year REA

Impairment loss recognised in respect Bt & 5 fE UK IE HE R 1
of trade receivables WIEEE

At end of the year RER

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZERER DA

23. BHEURIAE (8)

Bl KON 2 B 5 IR OE 2
BRI :

2016 2015
—g—xw ST
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

9,126 10,114
8,083 12,144
7,956 11,910
7,724 30,955
5,995 9,878
71,836 91,292
110,720 166,293

AREBEWERE T EBHIERBE
285 RWGIREL % - Than
ARREFREETF ZREFNFE
BERZEREFPORURZERE
L RBZEFRYGIRAIKE - AE
B30 f5 kb F S AR B (A e

REREEED
2016 2015
—F—RF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

46,019 30,623
2,012 15,396
48,031 46,019




23.

24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Allowance on doubtful debts of RMB2,012,000 (2015:
RMB15,396,000) recognised during the year ended 31
December 2016 was based on estimated irrecoverable
amounts by reference to the creditability of individual
customers, past default experience, subsequent
settlement and payment history of the customers. Full
provision has been made for individual trade receivables
aged over one year with no subsequent settlement as
historical evidence shows that such receivables are
generally not recoverable, or individual trade receivables
which has been in severe financial difficulties.

At 31 December 2016, included in the trade receivables
was RMB10,210,000 that was denominated in HKD
(2015: RMB2,231,000 were denominated in HKD). All the
remaining trade receivables are denominated in RMB.

BILLS RECEIVABLES

The aged analysis of bills receivables presented based on
the goods delivery date at the end of the reporting period
are analysed as follows:

0 - 90 days 0£90H

91 - 120 days 91&120H
121 — 180 days 1212180H
Over 180 days 1808 A

23.

24.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

REERE (&)

REBEZZT—AF+ZA=+—
HEFEBROREREARK
2,012,000 (ZZE—HF: AR
#15,396,0007T) i H R4 £ = (E
AIEFPHER - EFHBAELNT
% AR RZNELmEED
AREEE ERERERBB —FR
WEEEEZENERNE S ERHIE
(ERELBIEE RS EYGIA—
MR ATURE) 2k 2 BR P Bk 2 B 1B IR 2
BB BB 2 FE W R IBVE L 2 E R o

RZE—-—RFEF+A=+—8"
BORKAKEREABTIELZ
HIE AR ¥10,210,0007T (ZF —
RE: UBTHENRBARE
2,231,0007T) - B EH%E 5 EIK
HEHUAREE -

B R

REHRPR  REEMITEHE
Pz EWEERE DM AOT

2016 2015
—E—-RE -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT

3,458 1,390

S 4,117

1,510 2,723

7,347 8,870

12,315 17,100
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

24. BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2016,
receivables include bills endorsed to suppliers on a

the carrying value of bills

full recourse basis that are not yet due amounting to
RMB4,968,000 (2015: RMB2,583,000). As the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating
to these bills receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the bills receivables as assets in the
consolidated financial statements. The associated trade
payables secured over the bills endorsed to the suppliers
which were not yet due at the end of the reporting period
are recognised as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

24.

Bills receivables endorsed to REEBERELEMHEER
suppliers with full recourse: BHENERER
Carrying amount of transferred assets B4 E 2 FHEE
Carrying amount of associated HEaEZREE

liabilities

Net position BRFE

All the bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The maturity dates of endorsed bills were less than six
months from the end of the reporting period.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERBERAAE

MR (38)

RZT—XR"F+=-_A=+—08" &
WEENEEEREREABRE
EmEEEESEZEM AR
B AR 4,968,000 (ZZE—H
F: AR #2583,0007T) ° AR A
EEMAEEEEZSTRKEERD
BEARBKRER  MAEBMEZER
RAEVBHRERPER }H&zﬂ;&?ﬁﬂi
BEEEAREE BHAMHERS
ENZEE (REBEHREREADE) O
ERFEEEZEMREBRGEH
BARARPERRRRBEE -

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
4,968 2,583
(4,968) (2,583)

PIARUEREAAAREHE

EEEBRZIHABHIRN
Xig‘l'/\“ﬂ ©

NEEEE L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loan receivables arose from the money
lending business during the year.

Loan receivables carrying interest, and with credit periods,
mutually agreed between the contracting parties. Loan
receivables are secured by properties and personal
guarantees by the debtors/certain individuals. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly and handled closely by
senior management.

The loan receivables at the end of the reporting period are
analysed by the remaining period to contractual maturity
date as follows:

Within 3 months
3 months to 1 year

3EARA
SEAE1EFE

The interest rate was fixed at the contract date. The
average effective interest rate was at 5.25% to 24% per
annum as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 5.25% to 21%).

The loan receivables were neither past due nor impaired
relate to certain debtors for whom there was no recent
history of default.

25.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

B

FRARENRKER I BHRE
EBEE -

RURERTELRABEEDR IR
R ERBE - BRIRERIAYE
&Fﬁ“/\/%?t (ERIP N RPN
RABE EEETEHERRL
&‘tﬂﬂﬁi&@,ﬁsﬁﬁlm °

IR 2 U E FIRE S L2 5
HZRERBR O

2016 2015

—E—RE¥ —T—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBFT

121,965 35,437

99,276 14,909

221,241 50,346

MEERENBEHEE - R=ZFT—
ANEFTZA=FT—H FHERF
R AB525%%E24% (—F — A F
5.25%Z%21%) °

FEU & I KRB HIR(E - ABRA
T HOI I E R ERCENEEA
HEA -

Annual Report 2016
—E-REFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—"E+-_A=+—BLEE

26.

27.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS

Restricted bank deposits represents deposits of
RMB2,054,000 (2015: RMB1,749,000) which have been
pledged to banks to secure bills payables. The pledged
deposits are not available for use in the Group’s daily
operation.

At 31 December 2016, included in the bank balances
and cash was RMB37,617,000 (2015: RMB80,152,000)
that was denominated in HKD and RMB45,000 (2015:
RMB9,000) that was denominated in USD. All the
remaining bank balances and cash are denominated in
RMB.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
payables presented based on the goods receipt date at
the end of the reporting period.

0 - 30 days 0E30H

31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days 9Q0H A E

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZERER DA

26.

27.

MITHBRRRS ZRHIE
TER

ZBREBITFRDEBELER TR
TUBRBENEENTERARE
2,054,000 (ZE—HF : AR¥
1,749,0007T) - E B HF R A #
AEBNBEEBPER o

R-ZZE—RE+-A=+—8 "3t
ABITEBRERBESHNSEARE
37,617,0007T (ZE—hF : ARK
80,152,0007T) JaLAYEToRTHE @ A
R#45,000 (ZZ—HF : AR
9,0007T) AIAZETTEHE - FTBEH T
BITHEHB MRS UAREE -

BB RAREMNRER
AT RE S EMNRARENEER

HRMARBREEDRERBHZZ
BRER AT ©

2016 2015
—g—xw ST
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARMTR
23,821 18,613
7,530 8,074
5,184 1,227
14,414 12,455
50,949 40,369




27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The credit period granted by the suppliers to the Group
was within 30 days.

At 31 December 2016, included in the trade payables was
RMB4,968,000 (2015: RMB2,583,000) secured over bills
receivables endorsed to suppliers that were not yet due
for payment.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables at the end of
the reporting period are denominated in RMB.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables Hfth FE T 5RIE
Receipt in advance TR RIE

Accrued sales commission FERTIEE RS
Accrued professional fees BEtEXEA
Accrued staff costs FERT B TR
Other tax payables H At fERT IR

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—8HLEE

7. RAEAREAREMRE

(#)

HEBRARNEER D ZEEHR30
BA -

N—ZT—X~E+=-_A=+—8 " &
ABSENFENSEF2ERMHR
EREENRWER (HARFEE
;) BB RFRIEA K #4,968,000
T (ZE—HRF : ARH2,583,000
JT) °

REHRBR - BZFRNFAZEE
BEEAARREE -

28. HttFEf I RAREH B

2016 2015
—B—-RF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

11,271 11,436
2,296 1,417
8,848 14,167

681 553
4,915 4,045
1,493 2,092
29,504 33,710
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

29.

30.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The bank borrowings of RMB20,000,000 (2015:
RMB20,000,000) were secured by the Group’s leasehold
land and building with a net carrying value of RMB410,000
(2015: RMB566,000) and RMB389,000 (2015:
RMB1,121,000) respectively at the end of the reporting
period and repayable within one year.

The other borrowings of approximately RMB64,462,000
(2015: RMB Nil) were due to independent third parties.
The amounts were unsecured and repayable within one
year.

The interest rate of the other borrowings amount were
ranged from 2.9% to 5% per annum.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

20. RITREMMEE

REFRBAER BITEEARE
20,000,000 (ZZ—HF : AR
#20,000,0007T) T3 A R & B BRE
FES B AARKA410,000T (ZF
—HRF : AR®566,0007T) KAR
#389,0007T (ZZE—HF : ARKE
1,121,00070) Z F &+t RIEF(E
B WER—FAREE -

H g B4 AR #64,462,0007T
(ZZ—hF : ARBTT) BHEH
FBUE=F  ZEFSEARCHEM
WHAR—FREE -

HEES BN FMNER29%E
5% °

At 1 January 2015

Arising on acquisition of
Soaring International Group

Credit for the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015

Credit for the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016

@ Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERAF

R=—ZE-—R%—H—H

Yt #Soaring International & &
EE

FHHE R

T

R-_Z—RF+-A=+—H

FRER
[ 5 3%

KRB T=A=1—R

30. BERAAR

Undistributed

earnings of
the PRC Revaluation
subsidiary of assets Total
hEHELF H]E
ZEDRET ERftE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT
6,386 3,827 10,213
- 15,334 15,334
(5,515) (4,687) (10,202)
- 330 330
871 14,804 15,675
(871) (5,341) (6,212)
- 780 780
- 10,243 10,243




31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROMISSORY NOTES

At 1 January

Issuance upon acquisition of
Time Credit Limited (i)

Issuance upon acquisition of

w—A—H

RIEERBEERR
RNAEEETT()

P UgEESoaring International

Soaring International Group (ii)
Accrued interest charged

& E 1% 317 (i)
FEETE W&

Loss on early redemption e A fE Ol 518
Settlement by issuance of shares LABE TR B B
Exchange realignment P& 5 AR

At 31 December RTZHA=+—H

Notes:

(i)

(ii

On 23 March 2015, the Company issued promissory notes
for an aggregate principal amount of HK$33,000,000 at
3% interest per annum (the “PN 1”) upon completion of the
acquisition of Time Credit Limited to Ms. Lam Wai Ha, an
independent third party not connected to the Group. The
PN 1 is due on the second anniversary of the date of issue.

The fair value of PN 1 was approximately to their principal
amount calculated at the effective interest rate of 2.994%
per annum. The PN 1 is classified as non-current liabilities
and are carried at amortised cost until settlement on due
date.

On 14 November 2016, the Company early redeemed
the PN 1 in full by way of issuing 207,400,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.166. The fair
value of the said ordinary shares at the date of issuance
was approximately HK$56,720,000 (based on market
price of HK$0.31). Accordingly, loss on early redemption
of promissory notes of approximately HK$26,191,000 has
been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016.

On 9 November 2015, the Company issued promissory notes
for an aggregate principal amount of HK$213,600,000 at
2% interest per annum (the “PN 2”) upon completion of
the acquisition of Soaring International Holdings Limited to
Mr. Lee Yim and Mr. Ng Hang Fai Calvin, independent third
parties not connected to the Group. The PN 2 are due on
the third anniversary of the date of issue.

The fair value of PN 2 was approximately to their principal
amount calculated at the effective interest rate of 2% per
annum. The PN 2 is classified as non-current liabilities and
are carried at amortised cost until settlement on due date.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE

—E-AET=AST-ALEE

ARRIE

2016 2015
—2—»x LI

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETTT

207,737 -

- 26,023

- 174,996

4,389 1,165

26,191 -

(56,720) -

14,133 5,568

195,730 207,737

R-_ZE—RE=ZA-_+=HB" &
REARTERBRERFEEERA

i%ﬁﬁ$%llﬁ%§mﬁi

FE=IMBERL BT ASER
33,000,000 7T F A1 & 753%#) 7
RER ([AARE1]) - AARRE
1R ETT B HIERT 58 —FRIH -

AHEBINAFELOESRER
e Th152.994%H) B 5 & | &
FE e AR BRI EAERD
BENEEREHBEERTIREY
FRAFIBE o
E’\‘ T—XE+—A+mAE - &K
BIEFH0.166/8 T 2 B
%éé ﬁ $ A 71207,400,0000% & i@
BEIR A 2 BE I Bl A H =R o aZ—%
ERRNBETEHZAFENA
56,720,000/ 7T (LATTIHER SR
03B TLAERE) - Ailt - REZE
—E-RFE+ZA=+—RHI=E
& EHERIRATE DA N ZEEE
#926,191,00058 7

RZT—RFE+—ANA  KAF
A 58 AKX Uk B8 Soaring International
Holdings Limitedf& [A] B2 7N £ [
TEBENBILIE=HAZHE
ELREBEEZRTASLE
213,600,000/ 7T F F & £2%H]
AHER ([EEEE2]) « AHE
BN BT AR E = FRIH -

EAL BB AFELORAERE
Zl&%%ﬁ Th¥R2% 1) B BR & 7 51
8o Rk BB D ERIERDE
BEREZREIE BB E AT K
AFIER -
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B B IS SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HLFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2015
Increase in authorised share capital (note c)

At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and
31 December 2016

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2015
Issue of shares on 8 May 2015 (note a)

Issue of shares on 17 June 2015 (note b)

Issue of shares on 9 November 2015 (note d)

As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
Issue of shares upon exercising of
warrants (note e)

Issue of shares on 16 May 2016 (note )

Issue of shares on 14 November 2016 (note g)

At 31 December 2016

Shown in the consolidated financial
statements
At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2016

170 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHZRER DA

32. &
Number of
shares at
HK$0.10
per share Amount
SREE.10
BTZRirEE &8
'000 HK$'000
T FET
EE:
R-E—HEFE—F—H 3,000,000 300,000
SEERAIE M (ffiEe) 17,000,000 1,700,000
R_E—FRF+-_A=1+—H"
“Z-RE-A-BRk
—E-RE+-R=1—H 20,000,000 2,000,000
BERTREARE :
W-_Z—RF—HF—H 1,566,228 156,623
R_ZE—RFRANR
B (Hfita) 170,000 17,000
RZE—RF~A++H
BT (Hfzb) 313,000 31,300
RZE—RF+—ANA
B (HfZd) 520,000 52,000
R-E—RE+-_A=+—HE
—Z-X"E—HA—H 2,569,228 256,923
AT SRR 2 s
B (Hite) 384 38
RZE—A"FERAT/H
BT (B3 409,000 40,900
R-Z—RFE+—H+MA
BT (Hiitg) 207,400 20,740
RZF—R"F+=-HA=+—H 3,186,012 318,601
RESMBEERMAT
R-Z—RF+-A=+—H RMB’000 equivalent
ARBTREE 213,708
R-Z—X"F+-A=1+—H RMB’000 equivalent
ARBTREE 266,401



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 8 May 2015, pursuant to the placing and subscription
agreement dated 16 April 2015, 170,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each were allotted and issued at
the price of HK$0.31 per share. The net proceed of
approximately HK$52.8 million was used for general
working capital.

On 17 June 2015, pursuant to the placing and subscription
agreement dated 2 June 2015, 313,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each were allotted and issued at
the price of HK$0.35 per share. The net proceed of
approximately HK$109 million was used for general working
capital.

On 15 September 2015, the Company proposed to
increase its authorised share capital, which became
effective on 7 October 2015. The authorised share capital
of the Company increased from HK$300,000,000 divided
into 3,000,000,000 shares to HK$2,000,000,000 divided
into 20,000,000,000 shares.

On 9 November 2015, 520,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each were alloted and issued at HK$0.32 per
share upon acquisition of Soaring International Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 80,000, 12,000,
800 and 291,200 shares were issued upon exercising of
warrants on 19 January 2016, 22 March 2016, 23 March
2016 and 1 April 2016 respectively. The net proceed of
approximately HK$0.1 million was used for general working
capital.

On 16 May 2016, pursuant to the placing and subscription
agreement dated 20 April 2016, 409,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each were alloted and issued at
HK$0.166 per share to not less than six placees. The net
proceed of approximately HK$66.78 million was used for
general working capital.

On 14 November 2016, the Company early redeemed the
PN 1 in full by way of issuing 207,400,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at the price of HK$0.166. The fair value
of the said ordinary shares at the date of issuance was
approximately HK$56,720,000 (based on market price of
HK$0.31). As such, loss on early redemption of promissory
notes of approximately HK$26,191,000 has been
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

32. B&®&E (48)

(@) MZE—RFRANAB  BRIEHH
A_Z—RFNA+NBZEER
R RER0.3IBILZER
#id 3% K 3% 77170,000,0000% & f%
EOA0B Lz Lk - TS FUEF
¥ #952,800,000/& 7t & A E—
BBES -

by RKRZ-ZE—RFXA++EAH: REAB
HAE_T—RAFNA—AZEER
REHZ - RER0.35BITZER
Fic 3% &% 3£ 17313,000,0000% & AX
B0 108 T2 EBAR - FTISRIEF
£ #9109,000,00078 7t 2 A E— &%
BBES -

© RZT-—AFNA+HER FRRE
BEMEEERA - BN T —AF
TALRAERR - ARBZEERAH
300,000,000/ 7T, (43-433,000,000,000
A% B #7) 42 hi 22,000,000,0007% 7T
(%3 420,000,000,0008% 17 °

(d) RZE—RFE+—ANB R
Soaring Internationalts & 1% © ¥
[1%0.327% 7T Ac 2% & #£47520,000,000
R EFAREEO0. 10/ TT 2 EiBAR °

e REE-Z—F"F+=-A=+—H
LEFE - M TERREERD BIR =
T—RE—A+NA T RE=
A-+=R -ZZ—XR"F=ZA=-+=
A&k =F—/<F 0 A—H#1780,000
F ~ 12,0008% ~ 800R K2291,2008% A%
15 ° {3 5/IBF 88 4J100,0008 T E
BE—REBEES -

H M-EBE—RERA+A - REB
HAE_ZT—XRFNA_tHZEE
LRE I - HER0.16678 Tl %
K %£47409,000,0008% & AL EI{E0.10
BILZEBRTRDORNBER
A ° P15 338 5 58 966,780,000/
TERE—REEES -

(9) RZZE—X"F+—A+WMAB - &R
AIE BIRTAR0.166/8 T 2 (BIREETT
AR B]207,400,0008% & @A IR AT 2
BELA N 2B - xS EERNE
17 BE 2 A (B 556,720,000/ 7T
(ATIBEBRER0.3E T AEE) -
it R E—T—RE+-A=
+—HILFE - BRERIRAE Q&
HEIEE184926,191,000/8 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

33.

172

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 7 June
2010 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 6
June 2020. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors (excluding non-executive directors) of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 120,000,000, representing 7.66%
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 20 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from 1 year from the date
of grant of the share option to the 10th anniversary of
the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

33.

LI B ERETRESR

ARABRBER-_ZE—TF X ALA
B RFRT AR B ([3
iEl TEZEMERESFKEAE
RIEBRMEER - MR =
Z_TEXANBER - RIEZF
g ARAEZFEARNAERESR
(BREARAREMBATNES -
TEBEFNTES) ROBRE - U
RBARRD

RZZE—RF+=-A=+—H &
BT EIE R m s ARITE 2 B
REFTH I 2 B 17 2B /120,000,000
R MERAQRRZABEBITR
19 27.66% ° fEREARNRAIRESE
ERAERBERT - BIRZTEI 7] 82
BRENBREMS R ZBRHOBET
BBBA DRI R E B BT
M210% ° ERE AR R AREE 5%
BEBRT - FAEBALRER
—FABRRAER CBRERY
RzBBETRETETRNOHEE T
FRBARAANEMERE BITR
MH2Z21% °

ERBREALTANRE B R
0B B DB N1ET - A
EMBRE  BRETRELBER
REBES —FEERHBHZT
BEILERBSEITE - TEEHAX
NAEEETE AR TSERUAT
RmE ¢ ()ARFBROREHERZ
Y B ¢ (i M ERE L B HA
hEERBZFHRTE  Ri)A
DA EE -



33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

2016

Date of grant

RHiAM

13 January 2016

“F-75-A1=A

2015

Date of grant

RHiAg

16 March 2015

“E2-1%5=A1RA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vesting
period

Nil

Vesting
period

il

Exercisable at 31 December 2015

IN=F-RF+-A=t-Bff

Weighted average exercise price

METEHER

Exercisable
period

fiEM

13 January 2016 to
12 January 2019
ZF-5-f1zRZ
“Z-nE-AtzA

Exercisable
period

fiEM

16 March 2015 to
15 March 2018
“E-REZAREE
“Z-\$=At1A

Exercise

price

file®

HK$0.3

03T

Exercise

price

filEf®

HK$0.320

0.32087

33.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

LI B EREARRZR (])

=
Number of share options
BEEsE
Balance Balance
at at
1.1.2016 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 31.12.2016
RIZ-RE RZB-RE
-A-f +ZR=1-A
&R REARE  REATE  RERKN b
120,000,000 80,000,000 - - 200,000,000
—E-FF
Number of share options
BEEsE
Balance Balance
at at
1.1.2015 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 31.12.2015
AZE-1% A2E-1%
-A-A +ZB=+-H
&g REARE  RERTE  RERKN i
- 120,000,000 - - 120,000,000
120,000,000
HK$0.320
0.320% T
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the two years ended 31 December 2016 was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%)
Expected volatility (%)

& 22 (%)

T8 R 18 (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) 49 [ B 1) 2= (%)
Expected life of options (year)

Closing share price at grant date (HK$)

The expected life of the options is based on management
expectation and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was approximately RMB11,024,000 (2015:
RMB10,407,000) of which the Group recognised a share
option expense of approximately RMB11,024,000 (2015:
RMB10,407,000) during the year ended 31 December
2016.

A the end of the reporting period, the Company had
200,000,000 (2015: 120,000,000) share options
outstanding under the share option scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 200,000,000 (2015: 120,000,000)
additional ordinary shares in the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$20,000,000 (2015:
HK$12,000,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$42,400,000 (2015: HK$26,400,000) (before issue
expenses).

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

33.

BRiE RS (F)
REH Bz mE GET)

LI B EREARRZR (])

REBEE_ZT—"F+=ZA=+—AH
IFREFE  EREZBRAEEE
REAE 2 DATFE TR BHE A A
R-aRTHEEERX LG
BT WART RATIRERE 2 ER KR
&1 - TREFITHEBER 2280

2015

—T—hF

0.00 0.00
86 72
1.134 0.335
1.5 1.50
0.3 0.32

BRECARFHOIREBEEEER
HIEE  T—ERTAEHRZT
0 #R 7 o B HA IR 1R S BR JEE SE R B AT
RRARBBZBR TABRE

FRAEREBRAELGERE AF
B A5 #H AR H11,024,0000T (= =
—RE : AR¥10,407,0007T) @ H
PAREBREE T XF+_-A
Tt BULFEER - EERER
X 4 A R #11,024,00070 (Z & —
RE - AR¥10,407,0007T) °

REBREAR - AR RIRERETE
I8 T~ #A200,000,0000 (—Z—H
£ 1 120,000,00017 ) K ETTEE WK
e RARNRBERERERET » —
BRETEMNEREEZETE
1% < AR 5] 782175850 200,000,000
% (=ZZ — A £ : 120,000,0008%)
3B % K BE AR AR 4920,000,0007%5
T (ZZ—FHF : 12,000,000/ 7T )
B P& 17 % 8 #942,400,0005% 7T (=
LT —FHF 26,400,000/ 7T ) (K&
HBREEITHR) o



34.

35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASES

At 31 December 2016, the Group had commitment for
minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FA
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF
(BIEEREMT)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF
Scheme. The Group contributes the lower of 5% of the
relevant payroll costs and HK$1,500 per employee to the
MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the state-sponsored pension schemes is to
make the required contributions.

The total contribution to the retirement benefit schemes
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income is RMB2,606,000 (2015:
RMB3,297,000).

34.

35.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

RZF-—R"F+ZA=+—H &
SERBTABEECEHEERLT
REEE RN R AE - HIHBER
T

2016 2015
—B-R%F —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
910 716
212 90
1,122 806

iR fhina U 5 &

AEBAEMBEEREEREER
Bt AESE ([REST
gl  WHBIz2EEDEASEEE
HWEESHAERE  TRREEAE
HlzES - aFERMRERES
TERE - AEBEABMNIESIRE
B 3 & #5% M 1,500/ 7T 2 8K
HRBFESFT B -

FEMEARZEEE 2T BK
FEEzBREMRAKESE - Z
EMB AR ARERHEMEMER
DR EE B - BUEE
NENES AKERLFERE
RN TR B ZE— BB IELR

FE R -

ERiRE B K H M2 R &R
bR RKREFFTEIBHRAIABARE
2,606,000 (ZE—HF : ARM
3,297,0007t) °
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

176

Save as disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated B ERE
financial statements, the Group have the following related

party transactions.

Name of related party

MELHE

Yip Sum Yu
Eitm

Lu Yongchao
A oK

Note: The interest rate of the loan was 6% per year. In the opinion
of the directors, the transactions between the Group and
the related party were conducted in the ordinary course of

business.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERBERAAE

Relationship

S

Non-executive Director

FMTES

chief executive officer
TR

36. REAXS

Nature of
transaction/balance

XHNE wE

Loan interest received
BRERFIR

Loan interest receivable
R E RS

Loan receivable
Y E X

Loan interest received
BRERFIR

Loan interest receivable
PN E KA

Loan receivable
FEU & R

MBRREMELIBEEE
Sh - REBETANTHEESRS -

RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARBTRE ARBT
26 22

- 6

— 1,675

159 14

= 6

2,641 1,675

M BEROFENERE® - BEERA
AEFEEFEH 2R HTINATEE
BBIRPETT ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

37.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management for both years was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R K& FIET 214t 2%

VARS A7 R EE BB A5 3R

Share-based payments

IR

The remuneration of directors and key executives is

determined by the remuneration committee having regard

to the performance of individuals and market trends.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i)

Time Credit Limited

On 3 November 2014, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party, for the acquisition of 90% equity interest
in Time Credit Limited, a company engaged in money
lending business, at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$140,000,000. The acquisition was
completed on 23 March 2015.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB265,000
have been excluded from the cost of the acquisition
and have been recognised directly as an expense
in the year and included in the “administrative
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

36.

37.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

MEHXH ()

FEEBAEHH

EEhEMEITEEREXBRMIE
FREZHMT -

2016 2015
—E—RFE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEF T
1,877 1,560

35 38

- 3,903

1,912 5,501

EENTRTRABZMET A
MWEEE2EMARELRTIZES

MEEE °
I RE P I 2 B
() EHBEEERAH

RZTE—MFE+—A=RH"
RABEBLEZ U EE
RAEEERAR (—HERE
MEEBERE) Z290%
HVEBEEHE BREARD
140,000,0007% 7T Y8 2 1
T E-RHFE=A-+=H%=
;ﬁo

1k 5 #8 A B AR A R 265,000
TE BWIER AT Gk - R
FRNEEBRARIZ R AL
tETEREMEEAKERZ
[{THRFAZ BT -
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. NREMEB AT (#])

(continued)
(i) Time Credit Limited (continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Time Credit Limited at the date of acquisition was

(i)

EHEERRAT (A)

RBEEARRA XA B
ZAIBRHEERABZAFE

as follows: (I N
Fair Value
NFE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment M - HEREE 17
Loan receivable FEWE K 42,094
Other receivable o fE W IR 126
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 71
Other payables H At - 5k (34,448)
7,860
Non-controlling interest FEIEAR = (785)
Goodwill on acquisition 1o B B 72 A Y PR 103,318
110,393
Consideration satisfied by: RENUTHZIEEE -
Cash "4 84,370
Promissory note A EE 26,023
110,393
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: IR E A RIR SR TR -
Deposit paid during the year ended REBEE=Z—HF+=_A=+—H
31 December 2014 IFFEXNOES 55,125
Cash consideration paid during the year ended REZE-—_E—ARE+=-HA=+—H
31 December 2015 IEFESTHNBEERE (29,245)
Cash and bank balances acquired BRI e MIRTTARR 71
(29,174)

178 Sinoref Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Time Credit Limited (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
Time Credit Limited contributed approximately
RMB5,333,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss
of approximately RMB1,636,000 to the Group’s
results in aggregate for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31 December 2015.

If the acquisition of Time Credit Limited had been
completed on 1 January 2015, the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would have
been approximately RMB296,464,000 and loss for
the year ended 31 December 2015 would have been
RMB267,772,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

Soaring International Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Soaring International Group”)

On 15 May 2015, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with independent
third parties, for the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Soaring International Holdings Limited, an
investment holding company whose subsidiaries are
principally engaged in E-Commerce, at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$367,680,000. The
acquisition was completed on 9 November 2015.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement, the
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation guarantee for Soaring International
Group’s shall not be less than HK$10,000,000
for the year ending 31 March 2016 (the “EBITDA
Guarantee”). In the event of EBITDA Guarantee
cannot be met, the vendors shall pay a
compensation amount of actual shortfall multiple
of 38 times, to the Company. The fair value of the
EBITDA guarantee of Soaring International Group
was insignificant at the date of acquisition based on
valuation performed by an independent valuer, by
using a probabilistic model.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

37. KRB LT (8)

(i)

(ii)

EHREERRAT (K)

REBEE-_ZT—AFE+-_A=+
—BIEFE  RAEEERA
ARENRERREE—_T—H
F+_A=+—HILHMH &
HAEREBEHRBANARE
5,333,000t X B A KB EE
AR E 18 4 A R 1,636,000

7T|:o

WK ERTEEGRARN=
T—HE—A—H=xK K&
BREE_—_T—RF+-A=
+—BHLEFEZKRAEEY
A R #206,464,0007T @ 1M &
E_E—RHFE+_-_A=+—
BLEFEZBEEAARE
267,772,0007C ° Itk % & & ¥
EHRFEBARAR T —ERAR
EWER-_ZT—RFE—A—H
ERZERATAEBERE
WA RIEEEZE ZIBIZ - I T
WAL E B BB S 2 T8 -

Soaring International
Holdings Limited & L} &
A dl ([ Soaring International

&£Mm))

R-_TE—RAFRA+HRB "
ARBEBIE= KB
Soaring International Holdings
Limited (—fE#&% & ZE R A A
EWEA jIxfﬁE%E&?‘?ﬁ
%) Z100% # 5T 2 B & 1
& A8 8 3 #9367,680,000
BT WEER-_T—RF+
—ANBZEMK -

BEEE W= Soaring
InternannaI’i BERBLEHZ
—_E-XFE=ZA=+—B81
FEZEBTE RHEAA
A # T 4 7210,000,000 JT
(TEBITDAYR & J) fisl K BE 2=
;'JEBITDAH'( B ERARAK
/NEIS-E D aﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%% %
%ET’EZ%%WE o MUK EE B HA -
Soaring Internationalts & &)
EBITDARRFE K A TFE (RIEE
MhEME R ERGTEE
HEEE) WREK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(ii)

Soaring International Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Soaring International Group”)

(continued)

37. KRB LT (8)

(ii) Soaring International
Holdings Limited & H i} &
A8 ([ Soaring International

&3] (%)
Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB1,363,000 W i MR A AR
have been excluded from the cost of the acquisition 1,363,0007T E B W g K A
and have been recognised directly as an expense Sikk  WRFREEBRRAR
in the year and included in the “administrative X EETAGEERLEMEE
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of WK 2 [TTHRAS]ET -
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities Soaring International & & A U
of Soaring International Group at the date of BHHCAIABEERBEY
acquisition was as follows: NEFERAT
Fair Value
NFE
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE&EE 169
Intangible assets BmILEE 94,970
Trade receivables Z 5 W GRIE 2,251
Prepayment, deposits and BR - ReHM
other receivables U SRIE 2,034
Inventory FE 6,572
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITRR 6,724
Trade and bills payables B S RN RIERENER (5,956)
Other payables HAth fE A 5RIE (757)
Tax payables FEIBEIE (147)
Bank loan RITER (415)
Amount due to directors FEfNEEFRIE (8,541)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEIEA R (15,334)
81,570
Goodwill on acquisition IR E AR 2 229,740
311,310
Considerations satisfied by: REUTHISEEE .
Considerations shares RERSD 136,314
Promissory note A EE 174,996
311,310
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WIBREERIR S MAFRE !
Cash and bank balances acquired BUERIR e MIRTTAR 6,724

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(ii)

Soaring International Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Soaring International Group”)
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Soaring
International Group contributed approximately
RMB26,845,000 to the Group’s revenue and
approximately RMB1,644,000 to the Group’s
results in aggregate for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31 December 2015.

If the acquisition of the Soaring International Group
had been completed on 1 January 2015, the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
have been approximately RMB406,479,000 and loss
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would have
been RMB265,694,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

37. KRB LT (8)

(ii)

Soaring International
Holdings Limited & & i &
A7l ([ Soaring International

£@m)) (&)

REBEE-_TT—HF+ A
= + — H 1k F & ' Soaring
Internationalfs [# 7 B U i B
HEE_T-—RAFE+_-_A=+
—RHILHE - e RAREEER
R A K A R #26,845,0007T
RABREBEHEETROARE
1,644,0007T °

fits Yg BESoaring International
EERN-_ZT—AF—A—H%
K AEERBE-_ZT—AF
+TZA=F+t—BLEEZK
A FE B #) A R 406,479,000
T MREE-ZE—HE+ =
A=T—BHLEFEZEEER
A R #265,604,0007T ° It 15
EEREHFARE  T—F
KABREKRER - —hF—
A—BZAZ2ERATAREE
BREWAREEERZE
2 T ERUALER R B EE
2 TEA e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. FLATFMBIRAER
THE COMPANY

(@) Financial information of the statement of financial (@) ADFBBAMRERZHBEER
position of the Company

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AT ZIHE 321,361 321,361
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE = 3
321,361 321,364
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments SELNE Q] 260 243
Bank balances RITHERR 930 15,947
1,190 16,190
Current liability g DR
Other payables and accruals At JE 5 5RIE K FERH B A 2,028 1,838
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE (RE)HEBRE (838) 14,352
Total assets less current liability EEMHERTBHAR 320,523 335,716
Non-current liability EREBER
Promissory notes A =R 195,730 207,737
Net assets BEZE 124,793 127,979
Capital and reserves BERGEME
Share capital A% A 266,401 213,708
Reserves e (141,608) (85,729)
Total equity g1t 124,793 127,979
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of ExgRN T —tF=HA=+
directors on 31 March 2017 and are signed on its —BAHREREETE . W HI
half by: e
behalf by THREEE :
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BEF EBEFE
Xu Yejun Sin Kwok Wai Ronald
#RES KER

@ Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERAF
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e B R AR M R

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Movement of capital and reserves of the

Company

At1 January 2015

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of shares upon placing

Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments

Issue of shares upon acquisition
of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2015
and at 1 January 2016

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of shares upon exercising
of warrants

Issue of shares upon placing

Issue of shares

Issue of warrant

Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments

At 31 December 2016

RZB-1%
-F-R

FREE

ERftzElE

ERRANXER

REEBETRGD
BRRAEEI
B AEEAR
REEHBAAE
ki

RZE-1%
+-A=t-H
R=E-rE-f-H

ERER
ERAfEEkE

EERERXER

RTERRERR
ki
REERETRND
ki
BN
BERRAEN
B AERAR

i
+-A=1+-H

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

38. FLAFMBKAR ()

(b) FDAFEAXRRBEHEEE

Share

Share Share options Warrant ~ Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
k% BRHAR BRERE DREERE 2 ERRE 0 REEY &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARWTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
133,169 188,664 - - - 32,939 364,772
= = = = - (501,778 (501,775
- - - - 807 - 807
- - - - 807 (501,775)  (500,968)
37,94 89,513 - - - - 127,454
- - 10,407 - - - 10,407
42,598 93,716 - - - - 136,314
213,708 371,893 10,407 - 807 (468,836) 127,979
- - - - - (185540)  (135,540)
- - - - 8,325 - 8,325
- - - - 8,325 (135,540)  (127,215)
33 ! - (7 - - 97
34,364 21,825 - - - - 56,189
18,296 38,423 - - - - 56,719
= - = 9,576 = (9,576) -
- - 11,024 - - - 11,024
266,401 432,212 21,431 9,569 9,132 (613,952) 124,793

Annual Report 2016
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XRFEF+_A=+—HLEE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Name of subsidiary

HELFER

Soaring International Holdings
Limited

VT Zero Limited

ARTETT () ARAT

Time Credit Limited
RAEEERDA

Accura Machinery &
Manufacturing (Taicang) Co., Ltd.
Bt (R8) BRAA

Accurate Trade International Limited

China Safety Holdings Limited

Eagle Pioneer Limited

184 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZERER DA

Place and date of

incorporation/establishment

and operations
e/
BAREEHARAK

The British Virgin Islands
5 March 2015
ABRAES
“2-1%=A3A

Hong Kong

24 January 2007

B
“ERtE-ACTRA

The PRC

25 February 2011

Giléi
“B——4_A-TEH

Hong Kong

30 December 2011

&k
Z3-—F12A=18

The PRC

23 February 2004

hE
“ZTMF-A-1ZR

The British Virgin Islands
18 November 2013
RBRAES
Z2-Z£+-AtNH

Hong Kong

7 April 2014

&%
“Z-REMALA

The British Virgin Islands
12 March 2014
ABRAES
“F-RFZATIA

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRERRE /
ithEx

USS2
VES

HK$10,000
10,0007

RMB500,000
AE500,0007T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 72

RMB26,639,440
ANRE26,639,44070

US§1
X7

HKS$1
1T

USS1
%71

Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
the Company
FLERER
FRdEaLa
2016 2015
ol el —S-1F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
90% 90%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

39. FLAFMHBLTRFE

Principal activities

IERE

Investment holding

RERK

E-Commerce

K

E-Commerce

ESa

Money lending
i

Manufacture and sale of
paper converting equipment
and other relating equipment
HERHEARNIRER
At AER G

Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
RERR
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e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. FATFIMBATEE (]&)

COMPANY (continued)

Issued and Proportion of

Place and date of fully paid ownership

incorporation/establishment share capital/ interest held by
Name of subsidiary and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities

e/ BRTRERRE / AN
MELTRRE BIREERHR AN ithEx FegERLH FERE

2016 2015
o —E-1F

Great Select Global Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
SHBRARAT 18 November 2013 18T REZK

B

“EB-=£1t-AT/H
Sinoref (BVI) Limited The British Virgin Islands US$2 100% 100% Investment holding

12 January 2010 25T REAR

RBRARS

“E-FF-ATCA
Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
S (B5) BRAF 17 February 2010 1% REER

B

“E-ZF-A+H
Sinoref Yixing* The PRC RMB151,716,600 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
ZiE R 20 July 200 ARE151,716,6007T advanced stes! flow control

3 products

“EERELACTH HERHEERRIKIERER
# Wholly-foreign owned enterprise registered in the PRC. # RAEESMZINEBEERE -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year.

FRBENERRETERNBBEZ

%o
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e P H AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—"E+-_A=+—BLEE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

The following information relating to non-wholly owned
subsidiary that have material non-controlling interests
((ANC'”).

The summarised financial information represents amounts
before intercompany eliminations.

Time Credit Limited

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H
Non-current assets EMBNEE
Current assets MENEE

Current liabilities nENEE

Net assets BEFE

Carrying amount of NCI JEIE R S < BREE

BHE+T-_A=1t—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

Revenue WA
Cost of sales SHEM AR
Other income E A
Expenses 53
Profit for the year F A5 7|

Profit attributable to NCI

FRIERR R o PR AR A

Net cash flow (used in) from (AR, REREEE
Operating activities REREFE

Investing activities HEEE

Financing activities BEEE

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZERER DA

39.

FOFIHE QTR ()

AT AN AN R A EAF R
Bigas ([3EIRRRAERE]) e AN
BAF -

% B B 75 B B R OR 2 B A 5 A
M B

RIBPESHRLT
2016
—E—RFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETF T
13 17
84,691 12,865
(66,050) (2,832)
18,654 10,050
1,865 1,005
12,537 5,333
(1,428) (1,528)
56 14
(3,605) (2,183)
7,560 1,636
756 164
(36,390) 57,156




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

41.

On 18 January 2017, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent pursuant to which
the placing agent has agreed to place, on a best effort
basis, to not less than six independent placees for up
to 595,600,000 new Shares at a price of HK$0.30 per
placing share, for and on behalf of the Company.

The completion of the placing took place on 2 February
2017 pursuant to which the Company has allotted and
issued 595,600,000 placing shares to not less than six
placees, who are independent third parties, at HK$0.30
per placing share. The net proceed of approximately
HK$176.6 million is intended to be used for general
working capital and future investment of the Group.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

As disclosed in note 31 of the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company early redeemed a promissory note with principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 in full by way of issuing
207,400,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the price
of HK$ 0.166.

e B R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FE+_A=+—HLEE

40. HWEMEER

41.

RZE—tF—HA+=H" &2Q7A
BREEREBITVREE WS - Bt
REREERERRAQA @ KB
NITEEEMDDRINE B AR
AR £ %595,600,0000% ¥7 i% 15
B AERALERMN0.30% T °

EEER_TE—ttF-_H=-H=
B B - AR R WA DR KB
A (BEABILE=F) B8 &%
77595,600,000 % Bt & ik 1D + (B8 7%
BREERD0.30 T - FTEA
SFEE49176,600,000/8 Tt F1EA &
E—REEESRAENEREES -

FRFBERRH

WINERE SRR EI1FT R 5 -
REEZZT—"F+=ZA=+—H
IEFE - ARRFEBIZEFRR0.166/5
TLZ (B8 1T AR F]207,400,0008%
L@ URABHELDASEA
30,000,000/ 7t 2 2 H, 245 o
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Summary of Results, Assets and Liabilities

XiE BEEREEHE

Turnover

Profit (loss) and total
comprehensive income
(expense) for the year
attributable to owners
of the Company

Earnings (loss) per share
(RMB)
- Basic

- Diluted

Total assets
Less: Total liabilities

Total net assets

188 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZERER DA

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
*KEBE+T_A=1T—HLEEZER

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E——F ZE—=F ZZT-NOF ZT-—AF [=

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTE ARETE ARETT ARETT ARWTE

X8 322,671 186,436 240,916 288,942 357,840

AREHEEA
IS MR A
(B18) Remmiat
(FX%) B8

72,479 (56,776) (173,702) (271,432) (138,695)
FREF (FE)
(AR¥)
- ® K 0.06 (0.05) 0.12) (0.14) (0.05)
- 0.06 (0.05) 0.12) (0.14) (0.05)
Assets and liabilities of the Group at 31 December
FRERT-_B=1+—HZEERAR
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—F-—F ZE-=F ZET-NF —T—AF B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT AR®TRE
EEBE 694,552 628,753 631,485 875,968 942,675
W BERE (74,823) (65,416)  (104,937) (326,421) (378,825)
BEEFE 619,729 563,337 526,548  (549,547) 563,850
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